

CHRONICON

Archive 5

Modern History

1440-2012 CE

572 years covered in 449 date-entries in 154 pages

original research, unpublished

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

Jason M. Breshears

2017

and Prokop took the lead of the Bohemian army. (2)

1. Jewish Supremacy 199; 2. Hus the Heretic 117

1427 AD (5321 AM): 679 Before Armageddon/ 3665 After Flood

A fourth Crusade against the Hussites of Bohemia was assembled from all the Papal countries of Europe. It had taken more than two years to organize these armies after the news of Ziska's death. This massive army invaded Bohemia and to the amazement of Europe it was crushed by the Bohemians who fought furiously to the beat of Ziska's war drum, which according to reports, issued an incredible noise. The Papal army fled into Germany and parts of Germany fell to Bohemia. (1)

1. Hus the Heretic 117

1428 AD (5322 AM): 678 Before Armageddon/ 6666 Anunnaki Chronology/ 4800 X Olmec Calendar/ 3666 After Flood

Henry the Navigator's brother, of Portugal, brought back from Venice, Italy a map of the world that showed South America and the continents of the planet. (1) Portugal means ~~Port of the Gauls~~ Port of the Gauls. Chinese historian Gavin Menzies (USA) sets out in his book, 1421, to demonstrate that this Venice map was the one made by the Chinese in 1421-1423. But the Chinese were not needed for this production, as it is now known that the Phoenicians sailed around the world and the Templars had maps as well.

1. 1421 p. 138

1431 AD (5325 AM): 675 Before Armageddon/ 3669 After Flood

In this year three more Crusading Papal armies attacked the Bohemians. One army concentrated on retrieving the lost German territories and in this they succeeded. The Hussite defeated one of the Papal armies but the third Papal army was totally butchers to the last man. The Papacy in Rome unsuccessfully launched multi-national armies nine times against Bohemia simply because they asserted their divine right to read the Holy Scriptures in their own language, a seed planted by the ~~W~~ reformer John Huss. (1) Today these people populate the Czech Republic and Slovakia, and in the great square of Prague stands the proud statue of John Huss. On May 30th Joan of Arc was burned at the stake as a heretic in Rouen, France by the British after inspiring the French to rebel against the British. The Roman Church and Britain feared her influence and despised her role in the liberation of France because she was a female. There are some who ~~g~~ hold that Joan lived on, that another was burned in her place, that she eventually married Sieur des Armoise at Metz, even having a family together. Whatever her true fate, the popular belief that she was burned fueled the animosity between the French and British. (2) Also in this year Vlad Dracul was born, known as Vlad the Impaler.

1. Hus the Heretic 117; 2. Nostradamus: The Complete Prophecies 323 by Mario Reading

1433 AD (5327 AM): 673 Before Armageddon/ 3671 After Flood/ 2208 Olympiad Calendar

A comet seen over Europe as recorded by Paolo Toscanelli who recorded positional observations of the comet. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 14

1440 AD (5334 AM): 666 Before Armageddon/ 3678 After Flood

Coster of Harlem in ~~Hokan~~ Holland invented the printing press in this year, which was more

advanced than the Korean movable type. There ~~was~~ ^{was} a statue of this Dutchman in the city of Harlem at the marketplace commemorating his invention, of him holding up a letterblock with the inscription 1440 AD that read, "The inventor of the art of printing with movable letters of cast metal." (1) Coster's apprentice stole the concept and invention itself and fled to Mainz, Germany where it was demonstrated for Gutenberg, who has ever since been credited with the invention of the printing press. (2) Gutenberg and Schoeffer would experiment for 20 years until the press is perfected in 1460 AD. (3) The printed word would literally change the world as knowledge on all subjects became the domain of all. Until this time books were handwritten and required much time and skill to produce, books were thus treasures. With the advent of machines books literacy bloomed everywhere the press touched. From this point onward civilization would make leaps ~~and~~ ^{and} bounds in discoveries, innovations and inventions exponentially, increasing manifold year-by-year until the entire world is destroyed ~~in~~ in 2040 AD by planet Phoenix in 600 years, which plunges the survivors of Earth into a new Stone Age.

Also in this year the ~~Italian~~ Italian Renaissance scholar Lorenzo Valla proved that the Roman Catholic text entitled the Donation of Constantine was a forgery, a text that the papacy claimed was written by Charlemagne on his deathbed bequeathing all the monarchies of Europe to be controlled by the Pope. (4) 1440 AD is the date scholars assign to the Vinland Map, cartographic evidence that North America was visited and mapped prior to this date. (5) The Arab geographer Taki as-Din Ahmed ben Ali al-Makrizi wrote that the early Egyptians believed that Henoch built the Great Pyramid, his work entitled Hitat dated in 1440. ~~He~~ He wrote that Henoch is the Enoch of the Scriptures, also called Saurid, Hermes and Idris. (6)

1440 AD was 2160 years after the last of the Ten Tribes of Israel were deported into Assyria in 721 AD.

1. Strange Parallel, by Helen Koppejan; 2. Human Accomplishment 198; 3. Technics and Civilization 135; 4. A History of Civilization Vol. I p. 127; 5. Our Haunted Planet 30; 6. Crop Circles, Gods and Their Secrets 100

1441 AD (5335 AM): 665 Before Armageddon/ 3679 After Flood

Cambridge college was founded by King Henry VI of England. (1)

1. History in Quotations 308

1444 AD (5338 AM): 662 Before Armageddon/ 3682 After Flood/ 1488 Roman Julian/ 1368 Saka Calendar

The Jews are expelled from the Netherlands. (1) At this time Jewish merchants run a monopoly in human trafficking throughout the Mediterranean. Portugal received its first shipment of ~~xxxx~~ human cargo- ~~XX~~ 200 African slaves that were sold on the market. ~~XXX~~ (2) Prince Henry, an intellectual, explorer who researched old maps and built Portugal's international trading empire began to send out expeditions to distant shores to find new trade routes around African to the East. Portugal (Port of the Gauls) was diverse in racial stock of Celts, Iberians and Englishmen who in Henry's time intermarried with Greeks, Italians, Germans, Asians and the populations though predominantly Christian, was also Muslim and Jewish. Essentially, Portugal was a forerunner to the United States.

1. Jewish Supremacy 199; 2. The Discoverers: Boorstin 167

1446 AD (5340 AM): 660 Before Armageddon/ 3684 After Flood/ 2448 Throne of David established 1003 BC

Prominent date in the Great Pyramid's chronometrical geometric timeline.

1447 AD (5341 AM): 659 Before Armageddon/ 3685 After Flood

Earliest known surviving example of Gutenberg's printing is an astronomical calendar. (1)

1. Technics and Civilization 135

1448 AD (5342 AM): 658 Before Armageddon/ 4820 Olmec Calendar/ 4560 Mayan Calendar/ 3686 After Flood/ 2894 After Exodus [1447+1447]/ 2200 Year of Israel/ 2160 Orbital-Alteration/ 1184 Coptic Calendar

The Vatican Apostolic Library was founded by Pope Nicholas V when he brought together earlier Papal collections of books in Greek, Arabic, Latin and Hebrew with his own extensive library. The Library was begun with 80,000 handwritten texts and quickly grew to over a million books. (1) King Louis XI of France ruled at this time (to 1465) and was known as the Spider King because of the elaborate plots and webs he wove against his enemies. (2) A certain court astrologer predicted that a lady of the court he named would die in eight days, and as predicted, she died. King Louis was terrified and had the astrologer summoned after instructing his guards to await his signal before throwing the astrologer to his death off the top of the tower. When the astrologer arrived the king asked how long did he think he himself would live? Perceiving the trap, the astrologer replied sagely, "I shall die just three days before your majesty." Upon hearing this King Louis decided not to kill the astrologer. (3)

1. Journey into the Mythical Past 149; 2. 33 Strategies of War 130; 3. The 48 Laws of Power 85-86

1450 AD (5344 AM): 656 Before Armageddon/ 3688 After Flood/

Pope Benedict XIII declared- "The heresies, the vanities and errors of the Talmud prevent the Jews from knowing the truth." (1) Some time prior to him Pope Gregory IX had wrote that the Talmud contained..."every kind of vileness and blasphemy against Christian doctrine." (2)

1. Jewish Supremacism 68; 2. *ibid* p. 68

1453 AD (5347 AM): 653 Before Armageddon/ 3691 After Flood

In the Battle of Castillon the French defeated the English and the English lost virtually all of their holdings in France. (1) On May 29th the Turks captured Constantinople ending the Byzantine power. The decisive weapon that altered the history of warfare was turned down by the Europeans who refused to invest in the gigantic cannon that a merchant had offered them, but the cannon was bought by Turkish ruler Mahmed II, known as The Conqueror, son of Murad II. The fall of Constantinople was preceded by strange omens and unusual red lights floating over St. Sophia's Cathedral that even alarmed the Turks outside the city. There was said to be an eclipse of the sun, a terrible thunderstorm and torrential rain followed by thick fog. The siege was the first ~~modern use~~ of true modern use of artillery in history. (2) Constantinople was a reflection of the older ~~Roma~~ city of Rome. Rome both began and ended with its first rulers named Romulus (753 BC and 476 AD), and Constantinople began with Constantine the Great and ended in 1453 AD with Constantine XIII who fought to the death. Rome was founded in 753 BC, 476 years after their Trojan forefathers lost the Trojan War in 1229 BC, and Rome fell to the Ten Kingdoms of Germans in 476 AD. Interestingly, exactly 476 years after the Fall of Constantinople is 1929 AD when Vatican City within Rome became an independent state within Italy, the same year the Piri Reis Map was discovered in the palace of ~~Sultan~~ the Sultan of Constantinople which was originally drawn in 1513 by a Turkish navigator and depicts the shores and hinterlands of South America and Antarctica prior to the two-mile high ice sheet. The Hundred Years War between Britain and France ends after 116 years. Also in this year Gutenberg prints the first Bible and the Swiss alchemist-philosopher Paracelsus is born.

1. History in Quotations 283; 2. Wars That Changed the World 57

1455 AD (5349 AM): 651 Before Armageddon/ 3693 After Flood

The Wars of the Roses begins in England between the rival houses of York and Lancaster, their contention over the throne erupting into Civil War for 30 years until 1485.

1456 AD (5350 AM): 650 Before Armageddon/ 3694 After Flood/ 2208 Year of Rome/ 2200 Year of Israel/ 1500 Roman Julian/ 930 Anno Domini/ 1380 Saka Calendar/
Antonion Bonfini and others left records of an unusual comet half as long as the sky that exhibited two tails of a golden color like flames. Evidence that this was Halley's ~~Comet~~ Comet is found in that it travelled a retrograde orbit, like Halleys, and is the right time for the 75.7 year ~~orbital~~ orbital cycle of Halleys. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 14

1458 AD (5352 AM): 648 Before Armageddon/ 6696 Anunnaki Chronology/ 4896 Descent of Watchers/ 3696 After Flood

At 96 years old (born 1362) a Jewish mystic named Abraham, son of Simon, wrote, The Book of the Sacred Magic of Abremelin the Mage, a most fascinating compendium of knowledge on the control over spirits and demons, a magical treatise allegedly passed down from an old sage in Egypt named Abremelin. After journeying through Germany, Bohemia, Australia, Hungary, France and Greece to Constantinople (pre-1453) on through the Holy Land and Arabian desert, Abraham found Abremelin in Egypt, "...who was he who declared unto me the Secret, and opened unto me the fountain and true source of the sacred mysteries and of the veritable and Ancient Magic which God had given unto our forefathers." (1)

1. The Book of the Sacred Magic of Abremelin the Mage 8-9, 18

1459 AD (5353 AM): 647 Before Armageddon/ 3697 After Flood

Vlad Dracula (who we know as Dracula) had 30,000 merchants and others impaled in Brasov, Transylvania. This horrific method ensured a very excruciating death, taking a long time to die as the weight of the body slowly slid down a wooden stake-pole that penetrated the vagina or anus, and sometimes below the ribcage. This earned him the name Vlad the Impaler. This mass impalement occurred on St. Bartholomew's Day. The House of Dracul traced their ancestry back to Attila the Hun and the sons of Ghengis Khan. (1)

1. The Dragon Legacy 16

1460 AD (5354 AM): 646 Before Armageddon/ 3698 After Flood

Near the mountains of Berne, Switzerland miners digging for metals at a depth of 100 feet discovered a completely entombed wooden ship carved with well-fashioned ornamentation. Its masts were broken and an anchor was found. To the horror of the miners they also discovered among the timbers of the strange vessel 40 human skeletons of men that had died in the boat. (1) For other impossible discoveries of ships found inside mountains see 1503 and 1540. In this year Leonardo of ~~Pistoia~~ Pistoia found the lost Corpus Hermeticum, an ancient Greek text copied from an older language and attributed to Hermes (Enoch). The Hermeticum refers to those before the Flood as "...leaving great memorials of their works on the Earth." Many believe this to be a reference to the Sphinx and Great Pyramid complex, Carnac, Newgrange and Stonehenge. The Hermeticum became popular throughout Europe for its philosophical and wisdom content and copies were easily distributed with the printing press which served as a major stimulus for the Renaissance in Europe. (2) Also in 1460, Nicolaus of Cusa published his The Sieving of the Koran, research demonstrating that the writings used to compose the Muslim Koran were not of divine inspiration but from purely human historical events. (3) Prince Henry the Navigator died, a true credit to Portugal, a man of extraordinary vision and talent who collected many old maps of the world. Perhaps not coincidentally, in this same year Christopher Columbus was born, as Cristobel Colon, a Genoan Jew.

1. Secret Cities of Old South America 417; 2. Mysteries and Magic 22; 3. The Discoverers: Boorstin 578

1461 AD (5355 AM): 645 Before Armageddon/ 3699 After Flood

Mohammed II, the Conqueror, set out to kill Vlad Dracul. Dracula, as he was being called at this time, as well as The Impaler, was feared and despised for his atrocities in Europe but he was admired for his war exploits against the Turks. In his own kingdom of Wallachia in Transylvania he removed all threats to the security of the realm. He refused to allow Jews into his administration. As a youth he was a prisoner of the Turks and had spent several years growing up among them, seeing how the Turks employed Jews everywhere in their administration. Vlad was aware that the Jews had aided the Turks against Constantinople and acted as spies in Europe for the Turks against the Christian Europeans. (1) In this year the Turks invaded Wallachia and Vlad led his men in a series of raids against the immense Turkish army train, kidnapping Turks and bringing them back to his castle called Tigorviste in the dark of night. When the Turks under Mahmed arrived to Tirgoviste they were met with a ghastly sight, a clearing in the woods in front of the castle with 20,000 people impaled on poles in the air, many decomposing and others still alive, moaning and whimpering in pain. The Muslim Turks recognized instantly many of the victims were from their own army, and they had just got there. ~~XXX~~ Dracula escaped and the Turks fled the country.

1. Jewish Supremacism 194

1462 AD (5356 AM): 644 Before Armageddon/ 6700 Anunnaki Chronology/ 5500 Orbital Chronology/ 4900 Descent of Watchers/ 4300 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 3700 After Flood/ 3360 After Babel/

Johannes Trithemius born, mystic and chronologist whose writings were studied by Nostradamus. He dated the very beginning of ~~Creation~~ Time at the ~~5th~~ beginning of the 5th millennium BC, long prior to the 6000 year timeline for Man's Curse long known to the ancients. As shown in Chronicon I, the history of the Anunnaki as related to Earth began 5239 BC, and the history ~~of~~ of mankind ~~started~~ (homo sapiens sapiens created from preexisting lifeforms) in 4039 BC. Trithemius died 1516.

1469 AD (5363 AM): 637 Before Armageddon/ 3707 After Flood

Niccolo Machievelli born (died 1527), author of The Prince, The Art of War and The Discourses. He was a historian and philosopher and he listed all of the Ten Kingdoms of Europe that brought about the Fall of Rome though he himself was unaware of the prophecies concerning the ten Israelite-descended kingdoms (see 476 AD).

1472 AD (5366 AM): 634 Before Armageddon/ 3710 After Flood

A particularly bright comet appeared and was studied by Johannes Muller, who made positional observations for later astronomers. (1) A secret Portugese ~~fleet~~ voyage sailed to America captained by Jaoa Vaz Cortereal, known as Telles, and guided by the Norse pilot named Pothorst. (2) This was 110 years after the Norse-Goth expedition from Norway sailed to North American and left the Kensington Runestone in ~~1362~~ 1362. This is exactly 148 years (1776 months) before the Pilgrims would land in North America at Plymouth Rock in 1620. Leonardo da Vinci born (died 1519), an artist, architect, visionary and inventor of rifle-type firearms, link chains and was the first to date events in the past using tree rings (dendrochronology). He imagined up the submarine, parachute, aircraft and many such things we in the 21st century take for granted.

1. Introduction to Comets 6; 2. Pirates and the LostTemplar Fleet 189

1475 AD (5369 AM): 631 Before Armageddon/ 3713 After Flood/

The very first book printed in the English language using the printing press was Recuyell of the History of Troy. (1) This is intriguing, for ~~XX~~ Troy was a maritime empire controlling the Hellespont and a member of the Sea Peoples Federation until it sfall in 1229 BC. The early Roman traditions held that Trojans fled to Italy and also sailed around the whole of Europe under ~~Brutus~~ Brutus and Cornelius and founded Trojanova (New Troy), known as London, England.

1. The Discoerers: Boorstin 522

1476 AD (5370 AM): 630 Before Armageddon/ 3714 After Flood/ 2220 Post-Exilic Chronology/
1000 Fall of Rome/ 1400 Saka Calendar

Vlad the Impaler is assassinated and his head is taken to Constantinople (now called Istanbul) where the Turks prominently display it upon a stake. This is the 1000th year ~~of~~ after the Fall of Rome, Vlad having ruled a land that would~~x~~ come to be called Romania.

1477 AD (5371 AM): 629 Before Armageddon/ 3715 After Flood

Christopher Columbus visited Galway, Ireland and learned that a man and a woman had washed up on land inside a hollowed tree-trunk boat. He believed that were from India but they were most likely Inuit (Eskimos) or Amerindians. (1)

1. Ancient Mysteries 346

1478 AD (5372 AM): 628 Before Armageddon/ 3716 After Flood/ 2222 Post-Exilic Chronology

Spain unites into a single nation under King Ferdinand of Aragon and Queen Isabelle of Castille. This union is the foundation of Spanish dominance. They create the Holy Brotherhood, a military police force that enforce Catholicism and Papal allegiance, a scheme backed by Pope Sixtus IV who ~~xxx~~ provided them inquisitors to prosecute (torture) heretics (political and religious dissidents), thus establishing the Spanish Inquisition. On the other side of the Atlantic, the Aztecs finish a 22-ton monumental stone disk called the Stone of the Fifth Sun, sometimes wrongly called the Calendar Stone. Carved into extremily hard basalt, the 10 ft. disk is covered in apocalyptic end-of-the-world imagery and symbols. (1) This relic sculpture if an ancient American version of the Apocalypse, the Revelation, describing floods, earthquakes, comets are clearly depicted and one is reminded when looking at it of the Rangnarok prophecies of the Vikings concerning the Last Days, the Doomsday traditions of the Hopi of North America and the biblical prophecies. The Four Sun Ages of antiquity are depicted which are the subject matter of Chronicon I and When the Sun Darkens, terrible cataclysmic episodes that destroyed whole civilizations in ~~2222x~~ 2239 BC, 1687 BC, 1135 BC and 583 BC. The Mexican Noah is shown, ~~called~~ called Coxcox, survivor of the Flood. All Four Sun Ages ended with the death of the sun, thesun darkening (Phoenix transits) and the Aztecs believed that the Fifth Sun Age when the sun fell out of the sky. (2) The Fifth Sun begins the New Age and is represented by the glyph 4-Movement on the Stone. (3) This symbol, 4-Movement, is a clearly defined pyramid with an eye symbol and the movement is a reference to what will occur ~~xxxxx~~ in 2046 AD to Earth when NIBIRU passes too close... the planet being moved out of its place into a newer orbit (see 2046 AD). The year 2046 is the true end of the Mayan Long-Count calendar that began in 3113 BC, the subject of Anunnaki Homeworld, published in ~~2011~~ 2011 AD, and intriguingly, archeologists have noted that five of the animals depicted on the Stone of the Fifth Sun were indigenous to the Mayan country. (4) Just as the Book of Revelation reads that Christ will descend~~ed~~ from heaven with a sword protruding out of His mouth (power of speech to make war), so too does the very center of the disk (middle is the end) clearly show a god's face with a sword sticking out of its mouth! The Aztecs believed that the imagery placed upon the gigantic disk was a graphic depiction of the divine knowledges contained within the text of a golden tablet that was long ago brought to them by a wise stranger. (5) The golden tablet mystery

is closely associated with the Great Pyramid (see 498 BC). The Stone of the Fifth Stone was carved here during the reign of the sixth ~~king of the~~ Emperor of the royal Aztec Dynasty, named Axayacatl. (6)

1. The Antediluvian World 90; 2. Hyperspace 299; 3. The Mystery of the Crystal Skulls 134; 4. Beyond 2012 p. 18; 5. The Stone Angle 291; 6. Fingerprints of the Gods 106-107

1479 AD (5373 AM): 627 Before Armageddon/ 3717 After Flood

~~XXX~~ The Aztecs secure their dominion over all their neighbors. (1) They were the descendants of the Toltecs. Their empire would endure only 40 years, until the arrival of Hernan Cortez and the Conquistadores of Spain. Mohammed II, the Grand Turk, invaded Naples in Italy and captured 22,000 Christians. 12,000 of these unfortunate people were bound and marched in front of the walls of the city of Otranto and tortured to death. (2) A comet was seen over Arabia described as a beam of sharp wood (3) or as like a spear with a sickle. (4)

1. The Stone Angle 295; 2. March of the Titans 162; 3. Gods of Eden: Bramley 182; 4. Of Heaven and Earth: Antonio Huneus, intro.

1480 AD (5374 AM): 626 Before Armageddon/ 3718 After Flood

Ivan III, Grand Duke of Moscow, freed the Russians from Mongol control and allegiance, founding modern Russia. By this time the Russians are a devout Christian people, the Causasian element, which was the majority of the population, descended from the Rus Vikings and Slavic elements living among the Rus. This was 2200 years (44 jubilees) after the Ten Tribes of Israel, the last remnants, were deported in Assyria in 721 BC.

1482 AD (5376 AM): 624 Before Armageddon/ 5520 Orbital Chronology/ 4320 Anunnaki Dynasty/
~~XXX~~ 3720 After Flood

The book Ptolemaeus ~~XXX~~ Cosmographia published with a rough copy of a 2nd century AD map that depicts Greenland, Iceland and both North and South America showing both eastern and western coasts of the Americas. (1)

1. Elder Gods in Antiquity 144

1483 AD (5377 AM): 623 Before Armageddon/ 3721 After Flood

The Nuremberg Chronicle of Germany records the appearance of a comet. (1)

1. Ancient Mysteries 105

1484 AD (5378 AM): 622 Before Armageddon/ 3722 After Flood/ 1008 Fall of Rome

Columbus (Cristobel Colon) went to Portugal where his petition for a grant of ships to sail west over the Atlantic was denied. (1) It is to be remembered that the Portugese had already sailed to the Americas in a secret mission, a fact that was a state secret. By this time the Roman Catholic Papacy has so completely put down all of its doctrinal rivals, and the Crusader Age was over, Europeans well aware of the duplicity of the Roman Church and outright treachery against those men who died in war whose wives were accused as heretics so their estates could be confiscated. So the Roman Catholic Church found another "enemy" to focus upon. Almost overnight the widespread problem of witchcraft emerged as a viable threat terrible enough to topple the Church. Same old tune just different dancers. The Papacy formerly condemned witchcraft, seeing this as an inexhaustible source of wealth, and issued a Bull demanding that this be recognized as a problem throughout Europe. The denial that this was a problem was punishable as a heresy. This same Bull gave the Dominicans authority to torture any suspected witches, which meant torturing them until they admitting their

"guilt." Papal Infallibility was a doctrine employed by the Roman agents, a doctrine that claimed that the Church was led by the Infallible Pope, thus the agents of the Church when acting under his decrees were also infallible. Thus, if someone was accused of witchcraft, that person was tortured, and torture was justified because the Church could not err. No innocent person was ever condemned. This twisted insanity was practiced parallel with the Renaissance Era.

1. Pirates and the Lost Templar Fleet 189

1485 AD (5379 AM): 621 Before Armageddon/ 3723 After Flood

The Civil War in England known as the Wars of the Roses ends ~~and~~ between the houses of York and Lancaster. In August an epidemic broke out in London first, known as Sweating Sickness, a mysterious plague believed to have come from an evil mist. Some theorized its origin as being from the stars. The disease set in at night or early in the morning and resulted in death in just hours. Within months the epidemic vanished.

1486 AD (5380 AM): 620 Before Armageddon/ 4300 Anno Pyramid/ 3724 After Flood/ ~~XXXX~~
2070 Fall of Judah/ 1530 Roman Julian/ 960 Anno Domini Begun

Henry VII of England married Elizabeth, daughter of Edward V, united the English houses of York and Lancaster in an immensely popular move. This is 2488 years since the Throne of David was established in 1003 BC, the actual year of 2488 Annus Mundi being 1407 BC when the Israelites conquered Canaan and settled in the Land of Promise. The biblical prophecies indicate that God would never lack someone to sit on the throne of the descendants of the Israelites, and at this time in history it was widely believed by those in the isles of England, Ireland, Scotland and Wales that they were the blood descendants of David and the Israelites. This year is 2070 years (41x5) after the Fall of Judah when ~~the~~ Jeremiah the prophet and the scribe Barush travelled to Egypt with the Judahite princess Tamar and sailed to ancient Ireland, marrying her into the Semitic Tuatha de Danaan already settled there. The thread of Israelite royalty has even to the present day lived in the Isles. Agents of the Papacy published the Malleus Malificarum (Witch Hammer) in response to Pope Innocent VIII's Papal Bull concerning the spread of witchcraft, a text of instructions on torture techniques that guarantee "confessions" from "heretics." Henry Cornelius Agrippa is born (died 1535), famous mystic and occultist, a sage concerning the powers of the human spirit over matter. This was exactly 432 years after the great Division of the Roman Church in 1054.

1488 AD (5382 AM): 618 Before Armageddon/ 5796 Phoenix Chronology/ 4600 Mayan Calendar/
3726 After Flood/ 2232 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 2200 Orbital-Alteration/ 1800
Seleucid Calendar/ 1224 Coptic Calendar

Planet Phoenix passed through the inner solar system completing its 138 years orbit, and in this same year was born Ursula Southill, better known as Mother Shipton or The Northern Prophetess, a Christian woman with the power of wisdom and prophecy greatly revered in her area of England. She wrote a poem of a few hundred lines predicting many things that have indeed come to pass, i.e. aircraft, World Wars, submarines, computers, telephones, wireless technology, oceangoing vessels made out of iron and steel (instead of wood) and she very specifically describes the global disasters of the years 2040 and 2046 AD involving planets ~~the~~ Phoenix and NIBIRU, which she called Sky-Dragons. Her entire prophecy is stunning and published in Nostradamus and the Planets of Apocalypse. Her prophecy mentions that she would be burned at the stake but her words preserved for future posterity, which is exactly what happened to her.

1490 AD (5384 AM): 616 Before Armageddon/ 3728 After Flood

A meteorite shower in Central Asia killed 10,000 people while on the other side of the planet in Ireland a volcano in the Ox Mountains erupted killing many people and much livestock. (1)

1. Destruction of Atlantis 173, The Antediluvian World 35

1492 AD (5386 AM): 614 Before Armageddon/ 5800 Phoenix Chronology/ 3730 After Floods/
2898 Year of Israel

King Ferdinand of Queen Isabella of Spain attacked the last Muslim stronghold in Spain, Grenada, the Muslims surrendering. The Islamic domination of the Iberian peninsula was over. The Muslim administration was dismantled and the discovery that Jews were among those holding the highest offices in Moorish government enraged the Crown. (1) It was long remembered that it was the Jews that allowed the Muslim invasions over 780 years previously. The Crown ordered the Spanish Inquisitor-General Torquemada to give the Jews residing within the Spanish realm three months to either convert to Christianity or leave the country. Those remaining after the August 2nd deadline would be killed, imprisoned or reduced to slavery. All of Europe celebrated at the news spread that Christians were now in control of all of Spain. (2) An estimated 800,000 Jews departed the Spanish realm, many leaving properties behind and their estates were lost. This mass exodus of Jews was from the kingdom of Castille, Catalonia, Aragon, Galicia, Majorca, Minorca, the Basque provinces, the islands of Sardinia and Sicily as well as the kingdom of Valencia. They had already nine years priorly been driven out of the kingdom of Andalusia. All these realms were under Ferdinand and Isabella. (3) The expulsion of the Jews was not difficult for the Jews do not assimilate with the local population, but hold themselves and their culture apart and are easily identifiable. The Jews are descended from Judahites and Edomites and thus are a branch of the ancient Israelite family of nations that had by this date filled Europe and the Mediterranean with countries. This year of the Jewish Expulsion was exactly 2898 years (414x7) after the Israelites settled in the land of Canaan in 1407 BC.

On April 17th Christopher Columbus (Christianized Spanish name), who was born Cristobel Colon of Genoa, a Jew, was given permission and granted three ships with provisions for his voyage west over the Atlantic in search of India, to secure a better route for the spice trade. He was ordered not to set sail until August 2nd, which was the Expulsion date for the Jews, as hundreds of vessels left the ports full of Jewish families. Some believe that this was a coincidence, a mystery (4), but the facts are clear: Ferdinand and Isabella knew Columbus was Jewish and they did this to make a statement that he was not exempt. Columbus departed from the Gulf of Cadiz with his fleet, the Nina, the Pita and the Santa Maria. Historians estimate that a quarter to one-third of Columbus's crew were ~~Jews~~ Jewish, including the ship's doctor, a surgeon, navigator and a Hebrew interpreter. (5) The Expulsion date of August 2nd was the anniversary date of the Second Destruction of the Temple in Jerusalem. (6) On their voyage west they witnessed a bright meteor burst over the ocean, falling across the sky. Columbus landed in San Salvador, thinking that he had made it to India. He then sailed to Cuba where he lost the Santa Maria aground before returning to China. It is interesting that the popularized "discovery" of America was the same year and time of year as the relocation of hundreds of thousands of Jewish migrants, for the United States would become the greatest Israelite Empire the world had ever seen, as Ephraim, it would be the Empire of Adoption fulfilling the role of Cities of Refuge so popular under Israelite law. Columbus was influenced in part by the Travels of Marco polo, and in fact, in Seville there is a surviving copy of ~~Travels~~ Travels with marginal notes written by the hand of Columbus. (7) Further, in a series of lawsuits filed later it was revealed that Columbus had access to Vatican Archives which had references to Viking voyages in the New World spanning back several centuries. Some believe that the famous Vinland Map was in this Archive. (8) This was 130 years after the Norse-Goth expedition across North America that left behind the Kensington Runestone in 1362. In another parallel, in this year Martin Behaim constructed the first ~~globe~~ globe of the world. The Jews are also expelled from Italy. (9)

1. March of the Titans 318; 2. *ibid* p. 163; 3. History in Quotations 183; 4. The Discoverers: Boorstin 232; 5. Pirates and the Lost Templar Fleet 191-192; 6. *ibid* p. 194; 7. A Short History of the World 200; 8. Pirates and the Lost Templar Fleet 201; 9. Jewish Supremacism 199

1494 AD (5388 AM): 612 Before Armageddon/ 3732 After Flood/ 2900 Year of Israel

The Sephardic Jews used a printing press to produce copies of the Hebrew Pentateuch with commentaries, the Jews who were immigrants in a Muslim ~~country~~ country. (1) This was 54 years after the invention of the printing blocks and press by Coster of Harlem in 1440.

1. The Discoverers: Boorstin 543

1496 AD (5390 AM): 610 Before Armageddon/ 3734 After Flood

The Jews are expelled from Portugal, and from Naples. (1)

1. Jewish Supremacism 199

1497 AD (5391 AM): 609 Before Armageddon/ 3735 After Flood

Amerigo Vespucci explored the South American coast until 1499. The Italian navigator's name is a coincidence that caused an error to ~~be~~ be published in 1507 claiming that the Americas were named after Amerigo, which is untrue. John Cabot, an Italian navigator, famous for bringing the first ~~XX~~ Europeans to the North American shores (excluding earlier Viking/Goth and Phoenician visits), sailed from Bristol, England to North America. Interestingly, in 1955 AD a letter was found among the Spanish Government Archives written by a John Day of Bristol, England to the person of Christopher Columbus, this letter specifically mentioning a map of ~~North~~ North America. (1) Leonardo da Vinci drew a sketch of a man-powered flying machine. (2)

1. Ancient Mysteries 349; 2. Wars of Gods and Men: The Pyramid Wars 159

1498 AD (5392 AM): 608 Before Armageddon/ 4600 Vedic Calendar/ 3736 After Flood/ 972 Anno Domini ~~Began~~

Vasco de Gama of Portugal sailed from Europe, all the way around Africa, across the Arabian Sea and Indian Ocean to arrive in Calicut, a voyage unrivalled and overshadowing even that of Columbus because it was a successful route of the spice trade nations of Asia that the Spanish and Portugese desperately sought to the perils and inflation of the land-based trade routes that the Jews maintained secret monopolies on. Gama's voyage permanently linked the Far East to the West by sea and gave immense maritime power to the Portugese Empire. This accomplishment would have been much later in history had not Henry the Navigator first laid down the foundation of Portugese explorations of the worlds oceans and seas. The Jews are expelled from Nuremberg, Germany. (1)

1. Jewish Supremacism 199

1500 AD (5394 AM): 606 Before Armageddon/ 3738 After Flood

At least 26 comets reported between 1500 and 1543 AD. (1)

1. Gods of Eden: Bramley 184

1501 AD (5395 AM): 605 Before Armageddon/ 3739 After Flood

Italian navigator Amerigo Vespucci sailed from Lisbon, Portugal across the Atlantic with the intention of sailing beyond the islands Columbus discovered. This he did, sailing the South American coastline for 2400 miles returning to Lisbon in 1502. (1) This is a variant date for Vespucci's voyage.

1. The Discoverers: Boorstin 249

1503 AD (5397 AM): 603 Before Armageddon/ 3741 After Flood

Michel de Nostradam, or Nostradamus, born to Jewish parents who had converted to Catholicism

in France fearing the Inquisition. He is destined to be the most popular prophet ever, and for good reason. In this year a windstorm dislodged a huge chunk of rock from a high mountain overlooking the sea at Naples, Italy. Inside the rock was found the amazing fossil of a primordial ship and the spectators took note that the vessel was nothing like the ships of their time. An Italian historian and statesman named Giovanni Pontano was one of the many who witnessed and studied the amazing find. (1) For other buried ships from antiquity see 1460 and 1540 AD.

1. Secret Cities of Old South America 417

1506 AD (5400 AM): 600 Before Armageddon/ 5814 Phoenix Chronology/ 4320 Anno Pyramid/
3744 After Flood/ 1242 Coptic Calendar

Christopher Columbus (Cristobel Colon) died alone and penniless, fallen out of royal favor while others continued his explorations. He claimed to have discovered a new route to China, not knowing that the American Continents blocked this passage as well as an entire other body of water (Pacific Ocean).

1507 AD (5401 AM): 599 Before Armageddon/ 3745 After Flood

Martin Waldseemuller published his World Map which was the first to chart the longitude and latitude with precision, this being 144,000 days before its rediscovery in 1901 AD in Wolfegg Castle in Germany. It had been formerly owned by astronomer and geographer Johannes Schoner of Nuremberg but was lost. The globe and wall maps Waldseemuller made in 1507 were the first to call the western continents America. (1) Waldseemuller published in his Cosmographie Introducto that these western continents were named after Amerigo Vesputti, but this was a mistake. The book was an instant success and the error is still propagated in history books. Sailors referred to unknown western lands as Merika long before this, and the Americas were named after a western navigational star ~~called~~ called Merika. (2)

1. 1421 p. 238; 2. The Hiram Key 290-291

1508 AD (5402 AM): 598 Before Armageddon/ 4880 Olmec Calendar/ 3746 After Flood/ 2220
Orbital-Alteration

Sweating Sickness returned to England killing many people before vanishing in Autumn.

1509 AD (5403 AM): 597 Before Armageddon/ 3747 After Flood

Henry VIII became the King of England.

1510 AD (5404 AM): 596 Before Armageddon/ 3748 After Flood/ 2222 Orbital-Alteration/1554
Seleucid Calendar

The Jews are expelled from Prussia. (1) The Aztecs are alarmed when the water in the lake at Mexico City began to boil. A bright comet was seen in the skies and was considered an evil omen, according to de Sahagun. (2)

1. Jewish Supremacism 199; 2. The Mystery of the Crystal Skulls 116

1513 AD (5407 AM): 593 ~~AM~~ Before Armageddon/ 3751 After Flood

Vasco Nunez de Balboa discovered the Pacific Ocean by crossing the Isthmus of Panama in Spain's objective to find a sea route to the Spice Islands in Asia. Also in this year Ponce de Leon embarked on a mission to find the island of Bimini. The official reason was to secure precious metals but it has since been discovered that the Spanish were also on the hunt for the legendary Fountain of Youth, a story related by the local native Americans over and over again. In 1513 Ponce de Leon discovered the coast of Florida, thinking that it was merely an island. (1) The Turkish navigator, formerly a Muslim pirate but now known to be Jewish (2), Piri Reis, compiled his famous 1513 AD map using 20 older maps. ~~XX~~ (3). The map shows the South American coast and part of Antarctica before it was covered in ice.

1. The Stairway to Heaven: In Search of paradise:Sitchin; 2. Pirates and the Lost Templar Fleet 118; 3. The Stone Angle 368

1514 AD (5408 AM): 592 Before Armageddon/ 5552 Orbital Chronology/ 5184 Jewish Calendar/ 3752 After Flood

Pope Leo X published a whole list of sins in a book that could be paid for, in the form of indulgences, for the public. The Roman Church would forgive the sinner his or her trespass and those "forgiven" had to pay the prices that were published in the book. This unbelievable system led to the sale of indulgences and was the fiery controversy that lit the Reformation. Voltaire wrote that the Roman Church later tried to suppress the book to conceal this history but did not succeed. (1)

1. The Portable Voltaire 120

1517 AD (5411 AM): 589 Before Armageddon/ 3755 After Flood

The Ottoman Turks occupying Egypt remove the last of the white limestone casing blocks from off the surface of the Great Pyramid for rebuilding materials, inadvertently still leaving behind basement-level attached blocks that would be discovered by the British in 1837, 320 years into the future. The Great Pyramid of sand-colored limestone blocks is not the monument's original condition. The first white smooth blocks on the facing were removed in 1356 after an earthquake. The ottoman administration takes over Jerusalem and would occupy the ancient city for exactly 400 years until taken by the British in 1917. Sweating Sickness returns to England killing about 400 students at oxford among the many thousands that it claimed and on October 31 Martin Luther nailed his 95 Theses on the door of the All Saints Church in Wittenburg, Germany. Martin Luther accidentally discovered a Latin Bible among the books of the University, a book he had never before seen. The Holy Writ in those days was jealously guarded by the Roman Church, often chained at podiums and only in the possession of the clergy. Portions of the Gospels and Epistles were known particularly because they were read to the people, but the entire Bible was unknown to him. By studying the Scriptures in private his eyes were opened to the fallacies of the Roman Church doctrines and practices and he dedicated his life and energies to exposing their duplicity. (1)

1. Planet in Rebellion 34-38

1519 AD (5413 AM): 587 Before Armageddon/ 3757 After Flood

Aztec Emperor Montezuma II's sister, princess Papantzin, dreamt of strange white men from across the sea. When reports came in that strange white men had appeared out of the great eastern sea Montezuma was afraid and opposed the idea of open conflict with them. (1) Hernan Cortez of Spain arrived in Mexico on April 22, which happened to be the precise date on the Mexican Calendar that ended a 52-year cycle, on the day predicted to be the return of the god Quetzalcoatl. (2) This was the day Nine Wind on a one Reed Year. Cortez takes Mexico City and then virtually ~~en~~ enslaves it after disease weakened the population. The Spanish were in no way able to overcome the mighty Aztec empire by force, nor by disease. It was done by the Aztec fear that the Spanish were indeed divine sent. The Spanish Conquistadores tricked Montezuma and took the palace, leading to the fall of the Aztec Empire in its 40th year. In this year also Ferdinand Magellan defected from Portugal to Spain because they refused to give him ships and provisions to find a route around America to the Spice Islands in Asia. His fleet set sail towards South America, named the San Antonio, Victoria, Conception, Santiago and his flagship the Trinidad. Magellan's circumnavigation of the globe was 96 years after the Chinese Treasure Fleets had done it. ~~XX~~ On May 2nd in the Court of King Francois I of France, Leonardo da Vinci died.

1. Atlantis in America 175~~XXXX~~ Spence; 2. *ibid* p. 194

1520 AD (5414 AM): 586 Before Armageddon/ 3758 After Flood/ 2232 Orbital-Alteration

Hernan Cortez visited the ancient site of the mysterious city of Teotihuacan, a buried metropolis of immense ruins regarded as a City of the Dead by the local Aztecs 25 miles northwest of Mexico City. Enormous pyramids and temple complexes were buried beneath tons of earth and trees growing atop mounds that attested to the antiquity of the monuments. The Spanish excavated the site and studied the Pyramid of the Sun which stands 203 feet high. Intriguingly, the Mexican pyramid site parallels the Egyptian Giza site in a unique way. The Great Pyramids are off alignment noticeably with the third and much smaller pyramid, and this feature is replicated perfectly at Teotihuacan. The Great Pyramid is not 203 feet high though, but 203 levels of blocks (courses), which denotes a standard uniform method of measurement ~~shared~~ shared between them. Sultan Selim the Grim died, his achievement being that he virtually united the Muslim world under the Turkish Empire (Ottoman) after conquering Persia, Syria and Egypt. (1) Suleiman (Solomon) began to rule from ~~833~~ Baghdad to Hungary.

1. Pirates: Terror on the High Seas 78

1521 AD (5415 AM): 585 Before Armageddon/ 3759 After Flood

Magellan rounded the cape of South America through treacherous waters and a little exploration and sailed into the unknown waters of the Pacific Ocean after one of his ships mutinied. He finally landed in Guam and was killed by the islanders. Ponce de Leon explored Florida on a secret mission for the Spanish Crown to find the location of the Fountain of Youth that was believed to be connected to a river that rejuvenated the old. Unfortunately for Ponce the quest ended with an indian arrow. (1)

1. Stairway to Heaven: In Search of Paradise: Sitchin

1524 AD (5418 AM): 582 Before Armageddon/ 4896 Olmec Calendar/ 3762 After Flood/ 1260 Coptic Calendar

About one thousand women accused of witchcraft were all killed at ~~833~~ Como, Italy, and France was burning witches by the thousands. Savoy condemned 800 women at one time. (1) Much of the Christian European world awaiting a terrible flood that was predicted to occur in this year by the famous mathematician Stoffer. This prediction was ~~based~~ based off of astrology from an unusual planetary conjunction in Pisces. People made preparations for the disaster and many other built arks, bought boats and some sold off their property and possessions. Nothing ever came of it and this was 476 years before the Y2K scare of 1999-2000 AD and the doomsday predictions of ~~833~~ Richard Noone in his 5/5/2000: Ice, the Ultimate Disaster. Voltaire wrote that many people grew very rich from the 1524 AD scare. (2) This year was exactly 2448+2448 (4896) years of the Olmec Calendar, 2448 AM being 1447 BC when the great disasters in Egypt caused the Exodus of Israel.

1. Christ: The Power and the Passion ~~98~~ 98; 2. The Portable Voltaire 75

1525 AD (5419 AM): 581 Before Armageddon/ 3763 After Flood/ 2300 Olympiad Year

Charles V of Spain ordered the expulsion of all Muslim Moors from the territories of Aragon by 1526. (1)

1. Christ: The Power and the Passion 96

1526 AD (5420 AM): 580 Before Armageddon/ 4340 Anno Pyramid/ 3764 After Flood/ 1000 Anno Domini Begun

William Tyndale had a passion for the Scriptures and sought to provide the English people an English translation of the New Testament, which by this date had not been done (a New Testament Bible). In England he was harried and pursued by papists and he fled to Germany where he published his English New Testament in Germany, the home of the Protestant Reformation. (1) ~~This was the first~~

This was the year 1000 of the Anno Domini Calendar (Year of Our Lord).

1. Planet in Rebellion 42-44

1527 AD (5421 AM): 579 Before Armageddon/ 3765 After Flood

Holy Roman Emperor ~~XXXX~~ Charles V has his army sack the city of Rome initiating a bloody campaign. Many Jews are expelled from Venice, Italy. ~~600~~

1528 AD (5422 AM): 578 Before Armageddon/ 4900 Olmec Calendar/ 3766 After Flood/ 2240
Orbital-Alteration/ 2112 Fall of Judah/ 2070 Buddhist Calendar

King Francis of France began a major building program and renovations throughout ~~paris~~ Paris. This was a major national project restoring Old Paris while also creating a virtually new city with new architectural wonders. This was 414 years (Cursed Earth periods) before Paris would be destroyed by bombing in World War II, in 1942. Sweating Sickness returned to England, this time filtering over to the continent into Germany and then throughout continental Europe.

1529 AD (5423 AM): 577 Before Armageddon/ 3767 After Flood/ 2304 Olympiad Year

Turks continue spreading into Europe but at Vienna their advance is stopped by European forces.

1530 AD (5424 AM): 576 Before Armageddon/ 6768 Anunnaki Chronology/ 5200 Jewish Calendar/
4968 Descent of Watchers/ 3768 After Flood/ 1260 Coptic Calendar

On June 25th the Confession of Augsburg was conducted which officially began the Protestant Reformation of Christianity in Germany, a literal revolt against the Roman Church authority. (1) This date is 153x10, and 153 is the gematrical value for sons of God, the sum long associated with early Christianity. Almost immediately the Roman Church retaliated and many years of intrigues and violence ensued. The Muslim Koran was published using the printing press in Venice, Italy, ~~4x~~ even before any copies of the Koran were published in an Islamic country. (2) This was the year 1260 x of the Christian Coptic Calendar.

1. Planet in Rebellion 41; 2. The Discoverers: Boorstin 542

1531 AD (5425 AM): 575 Before Armageddon/ 3769 After Flood

The Spanish Conquistador Pizarro arrived in South America among the Inca, or Quiche, a people who reacted to the presence of white men with the same dread that the ~~XX~~ Aztecs experienced. Inca king Huascar of Peru related an ancient prophecy of the coming of white men which his own father told him, a prediction passed down for generations that foretold that in the reign of the 13th Inca, white men of strength surpassing their own would come from the east and hold dominion over them. (1) A variant of this tradition was the prophecy~~XX~~ of Chilam Balam known throughout the ~~X~~ Yucatan at this time, which foretold-

"At the end of the 13th Age, when the Inca was at the height of power, the signal of God would appear in the heavens, and the cross with which the world was enlightened will be manifested. There will be variance of men's will in future times when this ~~signa~~ signal shall be brought... receive your bearded barbarian guests from the east..." (2)

This is no doubt a corrupted, Christianized version rewritten by the Spanish, but the signal of god in the skies is a comet. The coming of white men was intriguing to the Inca, for they recalled vividly the tales of their forefathers that claimed that the megalithic architecture in South America "were the ~~work~~ work of white, auburn-haired men," who had lived thousands of years priorly. (3) These may have been Phoenicians or Iberians. This same race of white bearded men maintains a vast network of stone ~~roads~~ roads that the Inca maintained for a long time. (4) The arrival of the Spanish was not peaceful, for even the

Spanish chroniclers wrote that the Conquistadores raped over 5000 Inca women. (5) The "signal of God" the Inca witnessed was perceived to be Halley's Comet, which was seen in this year. Nostradamus witnessed Halley's Comet, known then as the Great Comet (6), and also recorded by Apian. (7) Quake at Lisbon, Portugal killed 30,000.

1. Atlantis in America: Spence 174-175, citing Garcilasso el Inca de la Vega, Hist. des. Incas, lib. ix cap. 15; 2. *ibid* p. 175; 3. Fingerprints of the Gods 52; ~~4. Lost Cities and Ancient Mysteries of South America 56-57~~
4. Secret Places of the Lion 13; 5. Lost Cities and Ancient Mysteries of South America 56-57; 6. Nostradamus: A Life and Myth 64; 7. Introduction to Comets 7

NOTE: add above: 1531 is the year found upon the Oronteus-Finnaeus Map which clearly shows Antarctica with running rivers and ice-free.

1532 AD (5426 AM): 3770 After Flood/ 1056 Fall of Rome

The Inca Huascar is overthrown by ~~Atahualpa~~ Atahualpa who then becomes the Inca of the Quechua people of South America, in Peru. Atahualpa is considered an illegitimate son and his seat was at Cuzco. Francisco Pizarro imprisoned Atahualpa and ransomed him back to the people for the gold and silver all around them, the requirement being that he be able to fill a certain chamber with it. The locals complied, stripping their facades and temples. Peru was the ancient Old Testament land of Ophir [Peru] where the Scriptures claimed was located a lot of gold. In custody, Atahualpa learned how to play chess and speak Spanish and the officers under Pizarro were enraged when Pizarro went back on his word to the people and strangled Atahualpa to death after he received the requested chamber of gold and silver. Pedro de Cieza de Leon in his Chronicles wrote that the megalithic city of Tiahuanacu in the Andes mountains of Peru (destroyed 1687 BC) had great doors of immense stone amazingly wrought, for the doorway, with their jambs, lintils and thresholds were of a single stone. He expressed his amazement and failed to understand how this was possible. (1) This is exactly what the archeologist Porter found in the colossal remain of architecture at Bashan, the land of the Old Testament giants called the Rephaim, huge doors all made out of a single stone-jambs, lintils and thresholds all together. At Tiahuanacu were excavated statues of men with six fingers on their hands and six toes on their feet. (2) In the Old Testament the story of Goliath has ~~his~~ one of his sons with six fingers and toes on each limb as well. Actual humanoid skeletons with six fingers and toes have been found. (see 1891 AD) A comet is seen over Europe, which, oddly, is said not to have been Halley's, which was the one that appeared in 1531. However, the 1531 date disrupts the perfect orbit while 1532 is closer to Halley's recorded periodicity. 1056 years after the Fall of Rome was the Fall of Peru to the Spanish.

1. The Lost Realms: Sitchin 209; 2. Lost Cities and Ancient Mysteries of South America 257

1533 AD (5427 AM): 573 Before Armageddon/ 3771 After Flood

European records tell of a bright comet in this year. (1) It was observed by Copernicus. Ivan IV is born, later to become Ivan the Terrible, a Russian Czar who idolized Vlad the ~~Impaler~~ Impaler/

1. Prophets of Doom 122; 2. Introduction to Comets 7

1534 AD (5428 AM): 572 Before Armageddon/ 3772 After Flood/ 1008 Anno Domini Begun

King Henry VIII of England passed the Act of Supremacy which made the King of England the head of the English Church instead of the Papacy in Rome. He began closing monasteries and confiscating Church property, inadvertently giving rise to Protestantism in England though

this was not his intent. (1) Nostradamus predicted an ~~no~~ outbreak of the plague, but his teachers, resenting his rising popularity for his successful cures and outspoken unorthodox ~~theories~~ theories, resented his acumen and were in essence his worst opposers. But the plague did return, and in the exact year he predicted it. (2) Nostradamus further foretold that a bright light would appear in the heavens in 1572, and accordingly, in 1572 a nova startled the world with its magnificence for months. He described and dated the Great Fire of London in 1666 and accurately described modern tanks, planes, submarines, aerial combat, time bombs, the emergence of western nations across the sea (America) and its war against the East, as well as radio, television, sea vessels made of iron (unheard of in his day) and even declared that some time after 1997 AD a great prophet will arise in Christendom, a new priest who will reform and revitalize the entire structure of the Christian faith. He compiled a chronology of Earth history that deduced the period from Adam to Jesus to be 3962 years. (3) This is only 35 years off the mark, counting from Adam's banishment in 3895 BC (1 AnnusMundi) to the year of the Crucifixion Event in 33 AD. He also deduced that from ~~Adam to~~ Noah to Abraham was 1080 years, and amazingly, from Noah's 13th year alive to Abraham's death was 1080 years (2826-1772 BC). In this year Ignatius Loyola founded the Society of Jesus (Jesuits), agents of the Roman Catholic Church. The fall of Roman Church power in England was exactly 480 years after the division of the Roman Church in 1054 AD.

1. A History of Civilization Vol. I p. 325; 2. Sages and Seers 19; 3. Secrets of Nostradamus 104

1536 AD (5430 AM): 570 Before Armageddon/ 3774 After Flood/ 1460 Saka Calendar

John Calvin published his Institutes of the Christian Religion, the first Protestant textbook. (1) He is most famous for his belief in predestination, that the future redemption of the elect was already set long before the past was begun.

1. The Discoverers: Boorstin 68

1538 AD (5432 AM): 568 Before Armageddon/ 5208 Jewish Calendar/ 3776 After Flood

Nostradamus was witness to the overnight creation of a volcanic mountain in Naples. (1)

1. Secrets of Nostradamus 27

1539 AD (5433 AM): 567 Before Armageddon/ 3777 After Flood/

The King of England's chief minister, Thomas Cromwell, commissioned an English translation of the Scriptures, called the Great Bible. (1)

1. History in Quotations 347

1540 AD (5434 AM): 566 Before Armageddon/ 3778 After Flood/ 1584 Roman Julian

The Jews are expelled from Italy. (1) Also in Italy Pope Paul III formerly authorizes the existences of the Jesuits. (2) Peter Apian in his Astronomicum Caesareum published in this year remarked that comet tails always point away from the sun. He had studied the comet of 1531. (3) Spanish miners searching for silver and gold traces near Callao, Peru, removed earth in a deep mine shaft and were surprised to discover an entombed wooden ship of extreme antiquity unlike any they were familiar with. (4) For other unusual discoveries of ships underground see 1503 and 1460 AD.

1. Jewish Supremacism 199; 2. Mysteries and Magic 95; 3. Introduction to Comets 7; 4. Secret Cities of Old South America 418

1541 AD (5435 AM): 565 Before Armageddon/ 3779 After Flood

Mercator built a map of the world in the form of a globe, the most accurate of its kind at the time.

1542 AD (5436 AM): 564 Before Armageddon/ 3780 After Flood

Pope Paul III revived the Inquisition, calling it the Congregation of the Inquisition, or Roman Inquisition, with the chief aim to crush the spirit and spread of Protestantism in Italy. (1) Portugese explorers reached Japan by sailing around Africa and on through the Arabian and India seas and around China through Indonesia for the first time. England joins the horrible practice of burning "witches", the brutal torture and killing women. This was predicted by Mother Shipton (Ursula Southhill, born 1488). In the 194 years of English insanity they would burn to death about 30,000 females. (2) This was much lesser than those burned on the Continent. This was the 476th year since the Norman invasion and takeover of England.

1. March of the Titans 318; 2. Christ: The Power and the Passion 98

1453 AD (5437 AM): 563 Before Armageddon/ 3781 After Flood

Nicholas Copernicus published his Concerning the Revolution of the Heavenly Bodies wherein he attacked the Church-propagated belief ~~that~~ in the geocentric universe. (1) In his heliocentric system he provided evidence that Earth was not the center of Creation, or the center of the solar system, but just another planet orbiting a ~~star~~ star. A Catholic priest himself, he had refused to publicize his findings because of the oppressive censorship of the Church, fearing retribution through the Inquisition. The forced-ignorance was ridiculous and damaging, Aristarchus having 18 centuries earlier already proposed that Earth moved around the sun.

1. A History of Civilization 8 Vol. I 299

1546 AD (5440 AM): 560 Before Armageddon/ 3784 After Flood

A gigantic astroid/comet body passes through the inner system and cross over the ecliptic after 52 years beneath the ecliptic. It will spend 40 years north of the ecliptic plane completing its 92 year orbit. This is exactly 500 years before this object collides into the North American continent.

1547 AD (5441 AM): 559 Before Armageddon/ 3785 After Flood

Ivan IV (Vasilyevich), The Terrible, crowned as Russia first Czar. Age 17. Ivan the Terrible idolized Vlad the Impaler and emulated him by having enemies and political dissidents impaled. He invented cruel tortures and he nailed the hats on the heads of foreign emissaries.

1551 AD (5445 AM): 555 Before Armageddon/ 3789 After Flood

Sweating Sickness returned to London, England and then quickly dies out. It has not returned as of 2012 AD.

1554 AD (5448 AM): 552 Before Armageddon/ 6792 Anunnaki Chronology/ 3792 After Flood/ 3000 After Exodus/ 2960 Year of Israel/ 2484 Divided Kingdom

Pope Julius III ordered that the Jewish Talmud be burned everywhere. (1) Solomon Romano burnt many thousands of Hebrew scrolls for the Inquisition. (2) In England the Catholic Queen Mary, later called Bloody Mary, announced that she would soon begin cleansing England of heretics (she meant Protestants). In 1555 she would indeed try just this. This year was 1000 years after the founding of the Imperial Restoration of the Roman Empire by Justinian in 554 AD, and exactly 5000 years after the division of the Roman Church in 1054 AD. A comet appeared over Europe inspiring fear and awe. Further, the crescent moon ejected a bright arrow of flame

into the night sky. ~~XX~~ (3)

In 1554 Gerardus Mercator published his Great MAP ~~of Europe~~ of Europe, correcting many of the cartographic mistakes of his predecessors. (4) Mercator's research included not merely the size, shape and distribution of the earth's landmasses, but also its history. Mercator amassed a tremendous amount of historical data and compiled a History of the World using the astronomical records of civilizations spanning back to distant antiquity, a chronology linking different dating systems and methods of the Assyrians, Babylonians, Persians, Greeks, Romans and others. (5) Mercator's Great Map of Europe actually exhibited those geographical areas that were then in 1554 occupied by the descendants of the migrating Israelites, this being exactly 3000 years after the Exodus of Israel from Egypt in 1447 BC (also preceded by a comet), and 2484 years (414x6) after Israel became a nation ~~xxx1407x66~~ independent of Judah in 931 BC. Interestingly, the Israelites in Egypt lived at Goshen, the region surrounding the Great Pyramid complex and Sphinx, the Great Pyramid being the pre-flood world's Prime Meridian, or 0 degree longitude/latitude. Because of an archaic global pole-shift cataclysm the Giza complex now lies on 30° north latitude above the Equator. Mercator's Map was published exactly 552 years before Armageddon, a Phoenix Cycle (4 orbits of Phoenix). Not only is the number 552 encoded in the chronometry of the Great Pyramid (see Chronotecture) very prominently, by Nostradamus was aware of Phoenix Cycles and was ~~xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~~ cognizant that Phoenix would destroy the entire WESTERN WORLD. (see 2040 AD). In fact, Nostradamus had so much to say concerning the destruction of the world by Phoenix that this author wrote Nostradamus and the Planets of Apocalypse to demonstrate it. In April of 1554 the secretary of ~~M~~ Nostradamus, a Jean-Aymes de Chavigny, began transcribing the prophecies of Nostradamus as the French-Jewish prophet directed him. (6) This collection was called The Centuries and it fully details the major depopulations of the world in disasters in the exact years 2040 and 2046.

1554 AD is the Annus Mundi year 5448, which is parallel to the exact Pyramid Inch height of the Great Pyramid today, which lacks a capstone. The Chief Cornerstone is not present, and will not return to Earth until Armageddon, in 552 years from 1554. Once a capstone is in place the height of the pyramid ~~xxxxxx~~ will be 5814 inches. As seen in Chronicon I, under the year 2815 BC (1080 AM), the height of the Great Pyramid at 5448 parallels the gematrical value in Hebrew for the statement in the book of ~~Isaiah~~ Isaiah that perfectly describes the Great Pyramid (Isaiah 19:19-20). The monument once exhibited millions of tiny inscriptions on its outer white limestone casing blocks that contained the wisdom and knowledges of the ancients before the flood, the histories and prophecies of future Earth. Interestingly, in this same year Konrad Gesner finished his monumental work Bibliotheca Universalis, 4 huge volumes, like the 4 faces of the pyramid, which contained a catalogue of all the writings that had ever been compiled in Hebrew, Latin and Greek, listing over 1800 authors and the titles of their works, even providing summaries of the texts. ~~Go~~ this epic achievement Gesner was called the Father of Bibliography. (7) ~~FOR~~

In 1554 a method for extracting silver from medium-grade ores was perfected in Mexico. (8) Later, in 1563, Gerardus Mercator would visit the Great Pyramid and even write the date of his visit on the ancient stone structure.

1. Jewish Supremacism 68; 2. The Bible Fraud 18; 3. The Secrets of Nostradamus 174; 4. The Discoverers: Boorstin 274; 5. ~~Obid~~ 274-275; 6. Nostradamus: A Life and Myth xv-xviii; 7. The Discoverers: Boorstin 427; 8. Pirates: Terror on the High Seas 26

1555 AD (5449 AM): 551 Before Armageddon/ 3793 After Flood

~~M~~ Catholic Queen Mary has over 300 Protestants burned at the stake as heretics in London, a largely unpopular move. Gunpowder was put in the fire so the victims would quickly die. (1) Cardinal Pole affirmed in parliament that Britain was the first of all nations to receive the Christian faith, an assertion made by others before like Vergil and Polydore. (2) Pope Paul IV condemned Jewish usury and anti-Christian activities. (3) An astrologer named Gauricus

warned King Henry II who was then 37 to beware of death in his 42nd year, during the summer. Nostradamus would later warn the king the same thing.

1. The Mask of Nostradamus 191-192; 2. St. Paul in Britain 63; 3. Jewish Supremacism 68

1556 AD (5450 AM): 550 Before Armageddon/ 3794 After Flood/ 2300 Post-Exilic Chronology/
1600 Roman Julian/ 1080 Fall of Rome/ 1480 Saka Calendar

On January 23rd over 800,000 people perished in China by an earthquake at the Shensi Province, principally in Shaanxi. Some estimates place death toll at 830,000. (1) A comet was recorded by Europeans in April. (2) This is exactly 70x7 years (490) before 2046 AD when millions in China will die from earthquakes throughout all of Asia.

1. Natural Disasters 50; 2. Introduction to Comets 16

1558 AD (5452 AM): 548 Before Armageddon/ 3796 After Flood/ 3456 After Babel/ 2100 Buddhist Calendar

A descendant of the Zeno Brothers named Ruscelli found among the family papers the Zeno Map dated at 1380 that depicted an ice free ~~Arctic~~ Greenland and certain polar regions. He had the map published in this year. (1) This date is connected calendrically to the Great Dispersion of humanity in 1899 BC, the Babel Event, 3456 years previously, or 864x4 years. As shown abundantly in Chronicon I, 864 is the number that links both space and time (see 3031 BC). In 1899 BC the families of the world spread out rapidly after a disaster and collapse of empire in the Middle East. As traditions concerning that period affirm, many expeditions had been set out previously to map the world and its coasts. Also in 1558 the military tank was invented, exactly 138 years (1656 months) after the armored wagon.

1. Cataclysm! 244

1559 AD (5453 AM): 547 Before Armageddon/ 3797 After Flood

Pope Paul IV published his Index of Forbidden Books. Every Hebrew book in the city of Prague was confiscated and burned. (1) On July 10th King Henry II of France died an agonizing ~~death~~ death predicted by Nostradamus and Gauricus. A splintered lance pieces his visor and eye in a ceremonial joust. The French Jewish prophet had specifically warned Queen Catharine de Medici but she could not dissuade him from the event. The knight that killed King Henry fled but was captured and Catharine tortured him to death. She was the mother of Mary, Queen of Scots.

1. The Bible Fraud 18

1560 AD (5454 AM): 546 Before Armageddon/ 3798 After Flood/ 2304 Post-Exilic Chronology/
2144 Fall of Judah/ 1872 Seleucid Calendar

Ivan IV of Russia becomes Ivan the Terrible at the death of his wife, the beautiful Anastasia Romanovna who had won a national competition of virgins to win his attention. (1) In this year was born Erzsebet Bathory of Hungary, popularly known as the infamous Elizabeth of Bathory, Transylvania (Romania, born 84 years after the death of Vlad the Impaler. She is infamous for butchering over 600 young girls and women so as to bathe in their blood in her belief that this was cosmetic and prolonged her youth. She was known as the Blood Countess and was influenced by the still-told stories of Vlad Dracul. She died in 1614, exactl 138 years after Dracula.

1. MacKings and ~~King~~ Queens 42

1561 AD (5455 AM): 545 Before Armageddon/ 3799 After Flood

A great mass of objects passed over the sun and filled the skies as seen from Nuremberg, Germany. Some smaller objects struck the ground and gave off a smoke and the greatest object seen was a gigantic black spear-shaped thing hulking passed the Earth. (1) The Northern Prophetess, Mother Shipton (born Ursula Southill) died. She prophesied of the Last Days with amazing accuracy, predicting two global destructions that will depopulate the entire world (2040 and 2046 AD). Nostradamus, who also predicted these two major global cataclysms for the years 2040 and 2046 was 58 years old at her death. In this year was born Sir Francis Bacon on January 22 (died 1627). He was a brilliant writer, orator, historians, theologian, mystic and poet, author of those works attributed to William Shakespear. He also edited the KingJames Version of the Bible. Bacon was actually born Francis Tudor, Prince of Wales, the legitimate heir to the throne of England, the offspring of a secret love affair between ~~the~~ Queen Elizabeth and Robert Dudley, the Earl of Leicester. Dudley was later poisoned to death and Francis identity was not made known to him until late in his life. He was raised by Nicolaus Bacon, Keeper of the Great Seal of Britain. Sir Francis Bacon was probably the greatest kingEngland never had.

1. Of Heaven and Earth: Intro edited by Sitchin p. 141 data from Antonion Huneus

1562 AD (5456 AM): 544 Before Armageddon/ 6800 Anunnaki Chornology/ 5600 Orbital Chronology/ 5000 Descent of Watchers/ 4400 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 3800 After Flood/

At Izamal in the ~~the~~ Yucatan, De Landa under Vatican authority attempted to destroy all of the Mayan codices. In July he burned 27 of the Mayan books, a tremendous accumulation of Mayan knowledge lost. This is evidenced by fact that the 4 surviving Mayan codices are all packed with information. This year was 800 years after the council of the Mayan astronomers (Time-Keepers) in 762 AD. In this year also from South America, Peru, Spanish explorers sent back to Spain a cache of fascinating figurines of dinosaurs fighting each other, fighting against armed men, of what appeared to be advanced scientific experimentation using magnifying glasses and telescopes, even performing ~~xxxx~~ surgery. The dinosaur carvings were of anatomically correct stegasaurus, brontosaurus and pteryldactyls. Many of these figurines are still exhibited in the Ica Museum of Peru. (1) Interestingly, this was the 5000th year since the descent of the Anunnaki called Watchers in 3439 BC who taught mankind these sciences before the Great Deluge (see Chronicon I).

1. Lost Cities and Ancient Mysteries of South America 30-31

1563 AD (5457 AM): 543 Before Armageddon/ 3801 After Flood

Gerardus Mercator visited Egypt and the Great Pyramid and wrote the date 1563 next to his name on the monument. (1) The Great Pyramid was the ~~the~~ 0° longitudinal point for the antediluvian world, and Mercator developed the modern late longitudinal system.

1. The Great Pyramids: Corteggiani p. 23

1566 AD (5460 AM): 540 Before Armageddon/ 3804 After Flood

In Nostradamus letter to his son Cesar, translated by Carlo Patrian, says that various volumes that had been hidden for centuries were revealed to him, old Hebrew books of prophecy. (1) At age 63, Nostradamus died. Strange lights were seen over Basle. (2) Some of these appeared a sblackish globes passing visibly over the bright sun, according to Samuel Coccius. (3)

1. Nostradamus: The Lost Manuscript p. 79; 2. Secretsof Nostradamus 157; 3. OfHeaven and Earth: intro, Sitchin p. 142, ~~XXXXXXXX~~ Antonion Huneus

1568 AD (5462 AM): 538 Before Armageddon/ 4680 Mayan Calendar/ 2806 After Flood

Gerardus Mercator published his Mercator's Chronology after 14 years of intense research he began in 1554, a 450-page tome containing a timeline of world history based off of astronomical calculations.

1569 AD (5463 AM): 537 Before Armageddon/ 5239 Jewish Calendar/ 3807 After Flood

Mercator published his famous map of the world using the Mercator Projection, exhibiting vertical and horizontal longitudinal and latitudinal lines. Pope Pius V expelled the Jews from the Papal States. (1)

1. Jewish Supremacism 68

1570 AD (5464 AM): 536 Before Armageddon/ 3808 After Flood/ 2976 Year of Israel/ 2500 Divided Kingdom

Ivan the Terrible of Russia had the 60,000 people of the city of Novgorod tortured and executed. The victims were impaled, fried alive in gigantic skillets and roasted alive on spits. The massacre took an entire week. (1)

1. Mad Kings and Queens 42

1571 AD (5465 AM): 535 Before Armageddon/ 3809 After Flood

In October a bright burning streak appeared in the sky as seen from Europe for a long time. It was a huge pillar of fire regarded as a good omen to the combined naval fleets of Spain, Venice and the Roman Papal ~~XXXXX~~ States on their way to ~~xxxx~~ battle the Turks. In the naval Battle of Lepanto the European Christians defeated the Turks. (1) Immediately following the battle the people of Venice retaliated against the local Jews and expelled them from the city. (2) Even at this date the Europeans were still hosting Jewish communities that acted as spies against them for the Muslims. Johannes Kepler is born (died 1630), famous astronomer and scientist who summed up his life research on astronomical geometry with the statement- "The earth's orbit is the measure of all things." (3)

1. Of Heaven and Earth: Sitchin p. 139-140, Antonion Huneus; 2. History in Quotations 296; 3. The Discoverers: Boorstin 310

1572 AD (5466 AM): 534 Before Armageddon/ 4944 Olmec Calendar/ 3810 After Flood

A supernova appeared and illuminated the night sky from the Cassiopeia star group that remained visible for 16 months into 1573. It was visible in the daytime and caused much alarm throughout Europe. The nova had been predicted by Nostradamus. (1) On August 24th the Roman Catholic prelates and priests pressured the king of France to commit a horrible crime. At the stroke of midnight as the bell tolled throughout the city, Catholics and agents of the Roman Church dragged Protestants from their beds and slaughtered them, killing 60,000 people. (2) This was at Paris, France and was ever known as the infamous St. Bartholomews Day Massacre. The king and those who participated were rewarded by the Pope, Gregory XIII.

1. Secrets of Nostradamus 43, 205; 2. planet in Rebellion 50

1577 AD (5471 AM): 529 Before Armageddon/ 3815 After Flood

Near Reyden, Switzerland, a very ancient and decayed oak tree fell and revealed a cave wherein was excavated the bones of a truly gigantic man, a giant that would have stood 16 feet in height. A well known physician, Felix Plater of Basle, studied the anatomical remains, refashioned them and presented them to the Senate of Luzern. Afterward the giant skeleton was immortalized upon the Coat of Arms for the town of Luzern and was painted by Johannes Bock. (1) A bright comet appeared over Europe. (2) A couple months later in December

black objects were viewed in the sky over Wittenburg, Germany, near Altorf. (3)

1. Secret Cities of Old South America 430; 2. Secret Symbols on the Dollar Bill 126; Introduction to Comets 16; 3. Of Heaven and Earth: Sitchin 142, Antonion Huneus

1578 AD (5472 AM): 528 Before Armageddon/ 5616 Orbital Chronology/ 4680 Vedic Calendar/ 4416 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 3816 After Flood

Workmen in a vinyard at Rome accidentally discovered the famous Catacombs of Rome after a collapse. Vast tunnels and galleries of rock filled with Greek and Latin inscriptions, crypt complexes and cemeteries used by the first and second century Christians and other outcasts.

1579 AD (5473 AM): 527 Before Armageddon/ 3817 After Flood

Sir Francis Drake of England sailed into the San Francisco bay and claimed it for Britain.

1580 AD (5474 AM): 526 Before Armageddon/ 5250 Jewish Calendar/ 3818 After Flood/ 1104 Fall of Rome

Sir Francis Drake completes his voyage around the world but the British government kept the matter a secret for 10 years. A comet is recorded by Europeans in September. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1581 AD (5475 AM): 525 Before Armageddon/ 3819 After Flood

Pope Gregory ~~XIII~~ XIII wrote ~~that~~ - "Moved by an intense hatred of the member of Christ, they [the Jews] continue to plan horrible crimes against the Christian religion with daily increasing audacity." (1)

1. Jewish Supremacism 68

1582 AD (5476 AM): 524 Before Armageddon/ 3820 After Flood/ 1056 Anno Domini Begun

Pope Gregory XIII had the Anno Domini calendar modified by making October 5th to become October 15th, eliminating 10 days from the calendar that were necessary to recalibrate the calendar with the seasons. (1) The Gregorians Calendar is still in essence the Julian one save for the elimination of leap days every 4 years. January 1st is decalred to be the beginning of the year. ~~XXX~~ (2) But this is nothing really changed for the ancinet Roman religious year began at January 1st. ~~XXX~~ (3) The Western World's New Years Day as January 1st is different than the east, and that of ancient Israel, which held the Vernal Equinox as the start of a New Year in the days of Moses. (4) This calendrical change was 1056 years after the creation of the Anno Domini Calendar in 526 AD. The Jews are expelled from Hungary. (5) A comet appeared, brining a terrible plague that afflicted Thuringia and the Netherlands. (6)

1. Secrets of Nostradamus 261; 2. When Time Began: Sitchin 200; 3. Tacitus, Annals of Imperial Rome XIII"9 p. 288; 4. Sex, Symbols and the Stars 20; 5. Jewish Supremacism 199; 6. Gods of Eden: Bramley 184

1583 AD (5477 AM): 523 Before Armageddon/ 3821 After Flood

Thomas Scalinge finished his Julian Count establishing a linear count of days beginning January 1st, 4714 BC (-819 Annus Mundi). The Julian Count is terribly inaccurate beyond any dates before 713 BC because it assumed that the year has always been 365.25 days instead of the older 360 days acknowledged by the nations of antiquity prior to 713 BC. Scalinge in this year published De Emendatione Temporum, a study stressing the importnace of the ancient chronologies of the Persians, Babylonians, Egyptians and Hebrews. He was fluent in Latin, Greek, Hebrew and Arabic and was known to have studied at some very rare library

collections. (1)

1. The God-Kings of Europe 161

1585 AD (5479 AM): 521 BEfore Armageddon/ 3823 After Flood

Sir Walter Raleigh sponsored the Roanoke Colony on an island on the North Carolina coast but the settler vanished without a trace. Even Virginia Dare, the first white European settler from England born in America was among the missing. The settlers disappeared with food still out on the tables and all their belongings intact. This is referred to as the Lost Colony. Even the local indians who were not hostile were baffled as to the disappearance of the English people. A comet recorded by Europeans in September. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1586 AD (5480 AM): 520 BEfore Armageddon/ 5256 Jewish Calendar/ 4400 Anno Pyramid/ 3824 After Flood/ 1110 Fall of Rome

Volcano at Java, Indonesia killed about 10,000 people. A gigantic astroid/cometary body passed over the ecliptic passing through the inner solar system on its 92 years orbit after 40 years north of the ecliptic on its way to collide into North America in 2046 AD, in 460 years (5520 months). Pope Sixtus V removed the colossal Egyptian obelisk from the Vatican placed there formerly by Emperor Caligula (at the Circus) to the front of St. Peter's Cathedral where it remains today. The obelisk had come from the city of On (Annu: Memphis) where it had originally been erected by Israelite workers under the Hyksos Dynasty in Lower Egypt. The monument stands 132 feet high, or 1584 inches (792+792).

1587 ~~AD~~ AD (5481 AM): 519 Before Armageddon/ 3825 After Flood

Mary, Queen of Scots was executed after ~~flaw~~ falsely accused in a plan to kill Queen Elizabeth I of England. Mary had been Elizabeth's prisoner for 18 years but was actually living quite well and being taken care of. Mary had many Catholic supporters and this made Protestants allied to Elizabeth very nervous. The plot was hatched to forge documents that served as evidence at Mary's trial to get her executed. Her son was James of Scotland who would later become King of England after Elizabeth's death because he was next in succession. (1)

1. Infamous Murderers 49-57

1588 AD (5482 AM): 518 Before Armageddon/ 4700 Mayan Calendar/ 3826 After Flood/ 2340 Fall of Rome

King Phillip of Spain attacks England with the dreaded Spanish Armada in response to the execution of the Catholic Queen Mary of Scotland. About 130 large warships set out from Lisbon, Portugal in May toward Britain. This was essentially a religious war where Catholic Spain sought to impose Catholicism on Protestant England, using the execution of Mary as a pretext. To the amazement of all Europe, the small and poorly outfitted British vessels repelled the Spanish fleet, 54 light vessels against 130 warships. Though the British cannons could hardly penetrate the Spanish armor, their defense provoked the Armada to sail around Scotland. But as they sailed around Scotland a violent ~~storm~~ storm laid waste to many of the warships with the remnant sailing back to Spain in disgrace. The event signalled the end of Spanish naval power and began England's rise as the naval power of the world.

1589 AD (5483 AM): 517 Before Armageddon/ 3827 AM):

At Quedlinburg, Germany, 133 people, mostly women, were burned at the stake for witchcraft in a single day. (1)

1. Christ: The Power and the Passion 97

1590 AD (5484 AM): 516 Before Armageddon/ 3828 After Flood/ 3036 After Exodus/ 2520
Divided Kingdom/

Comet seen by Europeans in January. (1) Inquisitor Henry Boquet wrote that in this year almost the entire nation of Germany was ~~xxx~~ busy cutting timber to burn witches. Whole villages lost their female populations to the pyres. (2) At Neisse in Silesia (Central Europe) a special oven was made in which mostly women were burned alive inside. In nine years of use over a thousand women, including children two and four years old, were roasted alive. (3) The Roman Catholic agents throughout Europe had a tremendous power over the minds of the laity because 90% of the commoners were illiterate and they blindly accepted what was told to them, deferring to the erudition of the priests not knowing that this sadistic program had nothing to do with actual witchcraft. This insanity that claimed millions of innocent ~~xxx~~ lives throughout Europe over the centuries would never have occurred except for the avarice of the Roman Catholic Papacy.

1. Introduction to Comets 16; 2. Christ: The Power and the Passion 97; 3. ibid p. 98

1593 AD (5487 AM): 513 Before Armageddon/ 3831 After Flood/ 2368 Olympiad Calendar

The Black Death strikes London. First appearance of this plague in London and it would strike a total of five times in the next 72 years, the final appearance being 1664-1665. (1)

1. Mask of Nostradamus 59

1596 AD ^(5490 AM) 510 Before Armageddon/ 5904 Phoenix Calendar/ 4968 Olmec Calendar/ 3834 After Flood/ 1332 Coptic Calendar

A comet recorded by Europeans. (1) German astronomer David Fabricius watched the star Mira brighten for weeks and then fade into obscurity. In 2007 AD a spectacular photo of this star was taken, showing ~~and~~ ultraviolet light picture of a 13-light year long tail like a stellar comet.

1. Introduction to Comets 16

~~1600 AD (506 AM)~~

1600 AD (5494 AM): 506 Before Armageddon/ 3838 After Flood

After eight years of imprisonment Giordano ~~xxxx~~ Bruno is burned at the stake by the Roman Church for making scientific assertions in opposition to fundamental theological tenets. (1)

1. Book of the ~~xxxx~~ Hopi 166

1601 AD (5495 AM): 505 Before Armageddon/ 3839 After Flood/ 2376 Olympiad Year

Queen Elizabeth ordered the expulsion of all blacks from England after learning that 20,000 black slaves were located in the city of London alone. (1) This year was 2376 years since the first western calendar was implemented, the Olympiad Calendar in 776 AD, 2376 years being 792x3. This year was 264 years before the last major western world power freed that last black Africans ~~x~~ from slavery, the Emancipation Declaration in 1865 in the United States. 264 years is 3168 months, or 792x4 months.

1. March of the Titans 206

1602 AD (5496 AM): 504 Before Armageddon/ 6840 Anunnaki Chronology/ 5040 Descent of Watchers/ 4440 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 4416 Anno Pyramid/ 3840 After Flood/ ~~xxxx~~ 3500 After Babel/ John Greaves is born (died 1652), English mathematician, antiquarian and Professor of Geometry. He was friend and colleague of Sir Isaac Newton. Greaves was famous for his scientific study of the Great Pyramid of Giza.

1603 AD (5497 AM): 503 Before Armageddon/ 3841 After Flood

King James of Scotland becomes King of England as well. James was determined to make the puritans conform to the state church. These were people of high moral fabric and they refused to conform with what they perceived were tainted church practices, so King James had them persecuted, hunted and imprisoned. These English puritans departed England in fleets to other countries where they met with similar fates until they found refuge among the Dutch Republic in 1611. Devoutly Christian they worked hard after leaving behind all their lands, estates and possessions in England. They began to dream and make plans of founding their own country, a land where they would be free to worship God as they wanted and not as how the state governments dictated. (1) It would be these Puritans that would sail across the Atlantic and colonize the North American coasts as the Pilgrims.

1. Planet in Rebellion 56-58

1604 AD (5498 AM): 502 Before Armageddon/ 4976 Olmec Calendar

Galileo Galilei adopted the heliocentric view of the solar system as presented by Copernicus, and Aristarchus almost 2000 years priorly. Galileo noted that the sudden appearance of a new star was evidence that the Universe was not changeless. (1)

1. The First Genesis 18

1605 AD (5499 AM): 501 Before Armageddon/ 3843 After Flood

A conspiracy to blow up British Parliament and kill King James known as the Gunpowder plot was discovered and the Percy family conspirators fled England. The main plotter, Thomas Percy, an ancestor of George W. Bush, thought to detonate the building. Interestingly, this was 396 years before the 2001 AD World Trade Center Tower destructions, 396 being half of 792, the WTC destructions occurring during George W. Bush's presidency. Erzsebet (Elisabeth) Bathory hung alive over 600 girls and bled them out into her baths to bathe in their blood.

1606 AD (5500 AM): 500 Before Armageddon/ 4444 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 3844 After Flood/ 1080 Anno Domini Begun/ 1530 Saka Calendar

In December three ships launched from London carrying 144 people; the Susan Constant, the Godspeed and the Discovery, all men to settle North America (Jamestown) (1) A comet was seen over Europe, followed by a plague. (2) This was 1080th year of the Anno Domini Calendar begin in ~~88~~ 526 AD, a number as found in Chronicon I as being associated with dates involving Israel and its descendants. This was 1000 years after 606 AD when the Pope became the Universal Bishop over Europe and 552 years after the great division of the eastern and western Christian churches of Europe in 1054 AD. North America was originally settled by religious dissidents not satisfied with Papal and government intrusion into their faiths. This was 540 years after the Norman invasion and takeover of England in 1066.

1. Time Almanac: 2008 at pg. 611; Encyclopedia Britannica; 2. Gods of Eden: Bramley 184

1607 AD (5501 AM): 499 Before Armageddon/ 3845 After Flood

Halleys Comet passed and was observed and studied by Johannes Kepler in October. (1) The English set up the first permanent North American colony, ~~Jamestown~~ Jamestown in Virginia. The Masonic text entitled ~~The Inigo Jones Document~~ The Inigo Jones Document compiled from older sources and concerned the secrets of Enoch and the Great Pyramid.

1. Introduction to Comets 10, 16

1608 AD (5502 AM): 498 Before Armageddon/ 3846 After Flood/ 1920 Seleucid Calendar/ 1344
Coptic Calendar

Lippershey of the Netherlands invented the telescope one year prior to the model built by Galileo. Though Galileo heard of Lippershey's invention, Galileo seems to have figured out how to design his own based off of the descriptions he had heard from others. Ever since Galileo has been immortalized as the inventor of the telescope.

1610 AD (5504 AM): 496 Before Armageddon/ 5280 Jewish Chronology/ 3848 After Flood/

Galileo discovers four moons of Jupiter and infers that the Earth is not the center of all motion. (1) ~~AM~~ Masonic text composed from older texts entitled the Wood Manuscript concerning Abraham and his history with the Great Pyramid and Egypt is dated this year. Hungarian Emperor Mathias II imprisoned Erzsebet Bathory in a cell for killing so many young girls. (2) King Phillip III of Spain rid the country of all the Moors. 250,000 Christinized Moors had remained in Spain after the Moorish government was taken over by the Spanish but now even these were expelled from the nation. The expulsion was for racial purposes and had nothing to do with Islam. (3)

1. Human Accomplishment 163; 2. MadKings and Queens 61; 3. March of the Titans 151

1611 AD (5505 AM): 495 Before Armageddon/ 3849 After Flood/ 1656 years after Year of Confusion:
Roman Julian

The most famous and widely read Bible in history, the Authorized King James Version 1611, was published in this year, the product of 47 approved translators organized into 6 groups spread throughout Westminster, Oxford and Cambridge Universities. Once they completed their assigned parts the materials were rearranged so other groups could critique the finished translations another group had made. Then the 6 groups met in London for 270 days to finalize the work before it was then edited by Sir Francis Bacon. (1) Aside from the Greek Septuagint version of the Old Testament Pentateuch, the King James Bible may have been the only literary masterpiece ever written by a committee. (2) The publication of the King James Version was instrumental in the fulfillment of biblical prophecies that declared that God's Word would be known and taken throughout the earth by the descendants of the Israelites. The 270 days required for the completion of the book seemed in itself to be prophetic, each day representing a future year in world history, for the King James Version Bible was the main Bible of English-speaking world until the publication of the Revised Version in 1881, exactly 270 years later. Another number indicative of the timing of Israelite works and acts is 1244, found over and over in Chrnicon I throughout Israelite history. 1611 was precisely 1244 years after Athansius published his list of the New Testament books of the Bible, all of which were found in the King James Version, from 367 AD. Sir Francis Bacon also wrote, "You shall understand that which perhaps you will scarce think credible, that about three thousand years ago, or somewhat more, the navigation of the world, especially for remote voyages, was greater than at this day." (3)

1. The Gospel Truth 170; 2. The Discoverers: Boorstin 532-524; 3. The Lost Treasure of King Juba 150

1612 AD (5506 AM): 494 Before Armageddon/ 3850 After Flood/ 1656 Roman Julian/ 990 After Hijrah

The Japanese government saw the rising population of Japanese Christians as a threat to their traditional culture and put to death almost the entire population of Japanese Christians, about ~~xxxxxxx~~ 15,000 people. (1)

1. March of the Titans 343

1613 AD (5507 AM): 493 Before Armageddon/ 3851 After Flood

The Troubled Times in Russia ends with the beginning of the Romanov Dynasty. This dynasty was much loved by the people, the Russians being a devout Christian nation and the dynasty would endure for 304 years until taken down in a conspiracy by the Jewish Bolsheviks in 1917 when the Romanovs are all assassinated. The ancient Book of Jasher (Tome of the Upright) survived millennia of invasions, book burnings and transference from hand-to-hand on through Alexandria in W Egypt and later Rome, on through the Christian and Islamic library destructions to finally be printed in Venice, Italy. This archaic Hebrew chronology of the world from the days of the first humans to Moses was called the Upright Record. The Book of Jasher, unfortunately, has been confused with its forgeries and modern academia shuns the text after two controversies involving Jasher texts that were forged. The true, scholarly-backed translation of the Book of Jasher can be obtained today at thebooktree.com (1-800-BOOK-TREE).

1614 AD (5508 AM): 492 Before Armageddon/ 3852 After Flood/ 3060 After Exodus/

Historian William Bramley wrote that in this year the German Order of the Rosicrucians at Hesse announced their presence in a dramatic publication and that the policy of the Order was to be publicly active and visible for 108 years before going underground again for another 108 years. (1) This is intriguing, for the Masonic utopian Empire, the United States of America, ends in cataclysm in 2046 AD, exactly 432 years (108x3) from this date. 1614 + 108 to 1722 + 108 to 1830 + 108 to 1938 + 108 to 2046 AD. John Rolfe of Jamestown in North America married the native American girl Pocahontas, the daughter of Chief Powhatan. She had been earlier kidnapped. (2)

1. Gods of Eden: Bramley 197; 2. A Patriot's History of the United States 18

1616 AD (5510 AM): 490 Before Armageddon/ 3854 After Flood/ 2368 Year of Rome/ 2200 Fall of Judah

The Japanese government passed the edict allowing for the persecution of Christians in Japan. The more the Japanese tried to purge the Christian element out of their culture the more Christians seemed to multiply. Galileo Galilei stood before the Court of the Inquisition because of his belief and teachings on the Copernican Theory of a heliocentric system. Unlike others accused of heresy by the Church, Galileo was a highly venerated scientist of the day and any overt move against him would have set the people against the Church. (1)

1. Gods Laughter 22

1618 AD (5512 AM): 488 Before Armageddon/ 3856 After Flood/ 3024 Year of Israel/ 2160 Buddhist Calendar

The Thirty Years War begins between German Catholics and Protestants, ending in 1648. Called the Great War by the Germans, millions died as more and more European nations were drawn into the conflict against the German Catholic Hapsbergs. This year was 3024 years (1008x3) after Israel became a nation in 1407 BC, and 2160 years (Precessional Cycle) after the start of the Buddhist Calendar in 543 BC, early Christianity having many amazing parallels with Buddhism as seen in Chronicon I. As this was a war sponsored by the Papacy, this was also 1080 years after the emergence of the ~~XXX~~ Papal Office in 538 AD. Three comets appeared in this years studied by Johannes Kepler, also a source of fascination to Galileo. ~~XXX~~ (1) Some sources say there appeared 8 or 9 comets. (2)

1. Introduction to Comets 10-11, 16; 2. Gods of Eden: Bramley 184

1619 AD (5513 AM): 487 Before Armageddon/ 3857 After Flood

The first African slaves were ~~sz~~ sold to English colonists in Virginia, North America.

1620 AD (5514 AM): 486 Before Armageddon/ 3858 After Flood/ 2550 Divided Kingdom/

The Pilgrims, or Puritans, sailed from Holland in the Dutch Republic on the Mayflower where King James had driven them by his intolerance. They sailed toward North America~~xx~~ hoping to found a land where God ~~wax~~ was feared rather than a king. On their way they stopped at Plymouth Hoe in England. Oswald Spengler wrote in his The Decline of the West, "The belief that the English are the descendants of the Ten Lost Tribes of Israel, a nation of saints predestined to govern the world- dominated also the emigration to America which began with the pilgrim Fathers of 1620." (1) Interestingly, 1620 is 432 years (108x4) before the beginning of the Anunnaki Kingdom over mankind that begins in 2052 AD. The Pilgrims landed and interacted with the local native Americans. They would be saved from starvation by generation indians, which is the origin of Thanksgiving Day. Sir Francis Bacon published his Novum Organum (New Method) in which he explains the techniques for inductive reasoning. An old German newspaper on June 25th note~~d~~ that for eight days straight the water in the city moat around a German town was red like blood. (2) The English Pilgrim colony in North America, 1620, was established exactly 792 years after the first king of England was enthroned in 828 AD. Further, this was precisely 2500 years (50 jubilees) after the founding of the Israelite capitol city of Samaria in 881 BC.

1. The Decline of the West 343; 2. Commentaries on the Occult Philosophy of Agrippa 67

1622 AD (5516 AM): 484 Before Armageddon/ 3860 After Flood/ 1000 After Hijrah

Chief ~~xxxxx~~ Opechancanough was the brother of the indian leader powhatan of the Chesapeake tribes, and he devised a plan to destroy the English settlers. luring them into a false peace he then launched simultaneous attacks on the settlements surrounding Jamestown that killed over 300 settlers. The English colonists retaliated by destroying indian corn fields which kept them in check for 22 years until 1644. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 20

1624 AD (5518 AM): 482 Before Armageddon/ 4736 Mayan Calendar/ 3862 After Flood/ 2376 Year of Rome/ 2368 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 2208 ~~W~~ Fall of Judah

~~xxxxx~~ Japan reenacts the edict allowing for the persecution of Christians in Japan and its territories. This serves only to force the Christian movement underground, adding to its appeal and strengthening its bonds. Through the covenants of Christianity the Japanese believers are adopted into the family of Israel. This year is 4736 years (2368 x 2) after the start of the Mayan Calendar, and this year was 2368 years after the Ten Tribes of Israel are deported into the East by the Assyrians in 745 BC initiating their migrations. Further, this year was exactly 70 jubilees (3500 years) since the establishment of ~~W~~ the ~~xxxxx~~ Abrahamic Covenant in 1877 BC offered to Israel and then all who maintain faith in the Creator.

1626 AD (5520 AM): 480 Before Armageddon/ 6864 Anunnaki Chronology/ 4440 Anno Pyramid/ 3864 After Flood/ 1100 Anno Domini Begun

The scholar, famous mystic and writer and Chancellor of England, Sir Francis Bacon (Lord Verulam), died. This year ends the Phoenix Cycle system of 552 year epochs of human history. These were measured by orbits of planet Phoenix. Planet Phoenix passes through the inner solar system on its 138 year orbit probably unseen from earth, however, on its next pass it will be seen clearly by hundreds of thousands of Europeans and studied by astronomer ~~xxxx~~ Hoffman through a telescope in 1764. In this year the Dutch purchase an island from the Manhatta indians still called Manhattan Island today, their settlement named

New Amsterdam, which would ~~n~~ later be renamed as the city of ~~NewYork~~ New York. This year begins a 414 year timeline (Cursed Earth period) to the total destruction of the ~~n~~ city of New York in 2040 AD, when the Atlantic ~~sixtywillkxover~~ ocean will bury the city and entire eastern United States as planet Phoenix transits initiating a slip of the lithosphere known as a poleshift. Also in this year the peruvian chronologist Ferdinand Montesinos finished his extensive ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~ Inca History. The research confirms the 1407 BC astronomical event of the sun standing still over Canaan, the American version claiming that the sun did not rise for 20 hours. Even the Phoenix period of 2070 years (414x5) is confirmed in the Peruvian records, this Andean Chronology mentioned in When the Sun Darkens.

1628 AD (5522 AM): 478 Before Armageddon/ 5000 Olmec Calendar/ 3866 After Flood/ 1152
Fall of Rome

From this year on through 1643 massive drought leads to the deaths of millions in China. Famine and disease, incidents of cannibalism also reported. This social unrest and fatality leads to the fall of the Ming Dynasty and the rise of the Manchus in 1645. (1) The steam engine is invented, a machine motor that will alter the entire world paving the way for industrial revolution which in turn influenced global economy.

1. Apocalypse 2012 AD p. 109

1631 AD (5525 AM): 475 Before Armageddon/ 3869 After Flood

Mount Vesuvius in Italy erupted killing about 4000 people. (1)

1. Natural Disasters 27

1633 AD (5527 AM): 473 Before Armageddon/ 3871 After Flood

The Inquisition in Rome condemned Galileo, Pope Urban affirming "...the proposition that the earth moves is absurd, philosophically false, and theologically considered, at least, erroneous in ~~fact~~ faith." (1)

1. Popery: Foe of the Church 107

1636 AD (5530 AM): 470 Before Armageddon/ 3874 After Flood/ 2220 Fall of Judah/ 1680 Roman
Julian/ 1110 Anno Domini Begun

Harvard College is founded, the oldest university in the United States. It initially was founded to train the Christian clergy but it did have a large secular itinerary. The Pequot Indians of coastal New England traded with the ~~Puritan~~ Puritan settlers but when a trader was ~~killed~~ murdered the Puritans launched an attack on the Pequot Fort on the Mystic River, in the following year of 1637. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 31

1637 AD (5531 AM): 469 Before Armageddon/ 3875 After Flood

The Puritans of New England with Mohican and Narragansett Indian allies attacked the Mystic River fort of the Pequot Indians. The colonial fighters were from Connecticut and Massachusetts. They destroyed the wooden palisade and fortress and killed about 400 Pequot Indians, considered one of the first stunning victories of the English over Indians. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 31

1638 AD (5532 AM): 468 Before Armageddon/ 3876 After Flood/ 2222 Fall of Judah

After a series of intrigues, Japanese officials concluded that Catholic Christianity was a cloak for the political ambitions of the Pope and Spanish monarchy. Japan formerly closed

off its borders to all Europeans. (1) John Greaves travelled to Egypt in 1637 and in this year he thoroughly studied the outside and inside of the Great Pyramid complex seeking evidence of a universal measuring system incorporated within the dimensions of the monument, a project his colleague Sir Isaac Newton was earnestly awaiting the result of. Newton believed that the Great Pyramid's dimensions contained the encoded secrets of the Universe. Greaves would publish his famous findings in Pyramidographia. In this year a gigantic astroid/cometary body passed through the inner solar system on its 92 year orbit, 40 years above the ecliptic and 52 years beneath it, ~~to~~ on its way to collide into the North American continent in 2046.

1. A Short History of the World 276

1639 AD (5533 AM): 467 Before Armageddon/ 3877 After Flood

Astronomers all over Europe first witness through telescopes the Transit of Venus, appearing as a tiny dot traversing across the face of the yellow sun.

~~1641 AD (5535 AM)~~

1641 AD (5535 AM): 465 Before Armageddon/ 3879 After Flood

Irish chief Rory O'More led a rebellion against the English to take Dublin. The hatred of the English seethed over abuses and the Irish took revenge in killing about 30,000 English occupants of Dublin, Ireland. (1) The War of Religion in Ireland results in the total death of about 40,000 Protestants, the Irish being Catholic. Jesuit priests in Brazil sent back to the Vatican strange figurines discovered in Brazil where antiquarians there translated the inscriptions on the statues, learning that they were Punic (800-140 BC) (2). Somehow Phoenician relics ended up in South America.

1. March of the Titans 219; 2. The Lost Treasure of King Juba 162

1643 AD (5537 AM): 463 Before Armageddon/ 3881 After Flood/ 1687 Roman Julian

Prophetic chronologist Heidelberg wrote that the Roman Catholic Church would fall from power in 1866, a belief shared by Professor Cellarius of Basle (1551), Robert Fleming (1701), Gresner (1690), among others. (1) This prediction concerns the 1260 years of the rule of the Beast over the Ten Toes (Ten Kingdoms of Europe) which became a multitude of European nations descended from the 12 tribes of migrating Israelites. The 1260 years was believed by these men to start in 606 AD when the Pope was declared to be the Universal Bishop, the master over all other Christian bishops. As seen in 1866 AD the Pope did indeed lose a lot of power. Sir Isaac Newton ~~was~~ born, largely remembered as being the first to record his ponderings over gravity and its force. Though Hipparchus about 2000 years earlier explained the Precession of the Equinox and times it at about a hundred years, Newton recalculated this retrograde period and determined its exact longevity at 72 years per degree of movement. ~~11°~~ 11° was 792 years, and 12° was 864 years. (2) Though Newton has been popularized as a leading scientific mind, and for the time he was, what is little known today is that Isaac Newton was an avid researcher into the deeper truth of the Scriptures and was convinced that there were latent messages encoded within the biblical narratives. He diligently studied the biblical prophecies and wrote over a million words of commentaries on his own interpretations and thoughts. Newton was fascinated with the research of John Greaves.

1. Today, Tomorrow and the Great Beyond 181; 2. The Discoverers: Boorstin 602

1644 AD (5538 AM): 462 Before Armageddon/ 3882 After Flood/ 1380 Coptic Calendar

On May 27th the Manchus of China marched toward Peking to reinforce allies fighting against the Ming Dynasty which had ruled for 276 years (138x2). In a brilliant move the Manchus concealed their army within a great dust storm and engaged the Chinese army of the Ming

by surprise, takin gpeking to establish the Ch'ing Dynasty that would go on to rule for 268 years. In North America chief Opechancanough launched another wave of indian attacks against the English settlers that resulted in another 300 deaths in 2 days. This time the settlers captured chief Opechancanough, shot him, and forced the indians out of the region between the York and James river. ~~XX~~ (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the Unite~~ed~~ States 20

1645 AD (5539 AM): 461 Before Armageddon/ 3883 After Flood

Astronomers noted a moonlike object near Venus. (1) This was the first recorded sighting of this object, but there would be many more over the years. Some astronomers have searched diligently for this unknown object, only to find that it is gone. Later the object is again reported by other astronomers.

1. Cataclysm! 350

1646 AD (5540 AM): 460 Before Armageddon/ 3884 After Flood

The monumental research of John Greaves on the Great Pyramid was published in this year as Pyramidographia, Or, A Description of the Pyramids of Egypt, in England. He was made the Professor of Astronomy at oxford. (1) On May 20th strange sounds accompanied with rumblings were heard in the skies all over England, throughout Norfolk, Suffolk and Cambridgeshire. A pillar of cloud appeared that seemed to ascend from the earth, pyramidal in form~~s~~. others describes it as a steeple ascending from the earth . At the same time the ~~w~~ witnesses claim that a cloudy spike descended from the sky to encounter it. (2)

1. Secret Symbols of the Dollar Bill 182; 2. The World's Most Mysterious Objects 108

1648 AD (5542 AM): 458 Before Armageddon/ 3886 After Flood/ 2400 Year of Israel

The Thirty Years War ended in Germany between those Catholic Hapsburgs and the Protestants of Europe with the Peace of Westphalia, ending the Holy Roman Empire~~of~~ Germany (founded in 962 AD). The Taj Mahal at Agra, India is finished. John Aubrey discovered that the huge hill called Avebury in England was artificial. This mound is so immense that the entire village had been built inside it, its sheer size disguising its artificiality, the locals thinking it was a natural hill.

1649 AD (5543 AM): 457 Before Armageddon/ 3887 After Flood

King Charles I executed for treason at the behest of Oliver Cromwell who was backed by parliament. Cromwell then permitte~~d~~ the Jews to come back to England reversing the Expulsion Edict issued and enforced since 1290 AD by King Edward I. (1)

1. The Synagogue of Satan 25

1650 AD (5544 AM): 456 Before Armageddon/ ~~8~~ 4464 Anno Pyramid/ 3888 After Flood

Archbishop James Ussher calculated that the Great Flood occurred in 2348 BC. (1) This is only 109 years off from the true 2239 BC demonstrated in many ways in Chronicon I. The Great Flood ended a specific 432,000 day ~~xxxx~~ countdown known to the ancients before the Flood, and this year of 1650 AD was exactly 3888 years after the Flood, or 432x9 years after 2239 BC.

1. The Incredible Discovery of Noah's Ark 111

1651 AD (5545 AM): 455 Before Armageddon/ 3889 After Flood

Antonio de Castro del Castillo, bishop of La Paz in South America wrote concerning the enigmatic, megalithic ruins of PumaPunka near Tiahuanacu- "It has not been concluded that these structures date from before the Flood." (1) As seen in Chronicon I these ruins were left from the global cataclysm that occurred 552 years after the Great Flood, in the year 1687 BC when planet Phoenix transited darkening the sun and afflicting the planet with devastating earthquakes. William Lilly of England predicted that the plague would return to London and that the city of London would be destroyed in a fire. Both of these would occur in 15 more years.

1. DeCastro/ del Castillo, Teatro Eclesiastico de las Iglesias de Peru y Nueva Espana, Madrid, 1651

☒

1652 AD (5546 AM): 454 Before Armageddon/ 3890 After Flood

John Greaves died, famous for his research on the pyramids of Egypt. This year ends the 12th baktun of the Mayan Long-Count Calendar begun in 3113 BC, being 1,728,000 days, or 144,000x12 days. This begins the final baktun of 144,000 days to the year 2046 AD when NIBIRU pushes Earth off of its present orbit around the sun into a much tighter orbit that abbreviates the year to 240 days and the day to 16 hours, when North American is destroyed by a comet/~~askrøid~~ meteorite impact. A comet is reported by Europeans in this year, in November. (1) A meteorite crashed between Siena and Rome in May. (2)

1. Introduction to Comets 16; 2. Book of the Damned 37

1653 AD (5547 AM): 453 Before Armageddon/ 3891 After Flood

~~☒☒☒~~ The tomb of Merovingian king Childeric I, father of Clovis I, was accidentally discovered by a stonemason working on a church. Inside the tomb were found three hundred golden bees. (1) Twelve years later these bees would be given to the French King Louis XIV in 1665. The bee was a symbol of royalty.

1. The World's ~~Most~~ Mysterious Objects 226

1656 AD (5550 AM): 450 Before Armageddon/ 3894 After Flood/ 2400 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 2368 Orbital-Alteration/ 1700 Roman Julian

Manesseh ben Israel, leader of the Jews of Amsterdam, visited London and met with the Puritan English minister Oliver Cromwell, persuading him to allow the Jews to return to England. The Jews had been disallowed entrance into England since the Expulsion Edict of 1290 AD by King Edward I, 366 years earlier. Cromwell was an avid reader of the Scriptures. (1) This year, 1656, is 414x4 or 552x3, the Annus Mundi year of 1656 being 2239 BC when the Great Flood occurred. Edmund Halley was born, famous for discovering that a returning comet was the same comet that had returned many previous times, named Halleys. He predicted its return and 16 years after his death it did return in 1758. Archbishop James Ussher died, the Christian chronologist who dated the beginning of the world at ~~4004~~ 4004 AD and Armageddon at 1996 AD. Ussher's Chronology became the accepted orthodox chronology despite its errors. His chronology is 110 years off, just as the ancient Jewish Calendar used today is 133 years off.

1. History in Quotations

1657 AD (5551 AM): 449 Before Armageddon/ 3895 After Flood

The Dark Satellite, a former rock and metal moon of NIBIRU, passes through the inner solar system after 395 years orbiting the sun. This begins its final orbit of 395 years to its

return to pass close to Earth in 2052 AD bringing the Seven Kings of the Anunnaki who will rule mankind during the Beast Kingdom.

1658 AD (5552 AM): 448 Before Armageddon/ 3896 After Flood/

Two years after he died James Ussher's Chronology was published as The Annals of the World: Deduced From the Origin of Time. It was an instant success, the talk of England and Europe. This year was exactly 5000+552 years Annus Mundi, or 1658 AD. Phoenix as seen in When the Sun Darkens and Nostradamus and the Planets of Apocalypse was the planet of chronology, 552 years being a Phoenix Cycle.

1660 AD (5554 AM): 446 Before Armageddon/ 3898 After Flood/ 1184 Fall of Rome/ 1584 Saka Calendar

The Royal Society is formed in London by Freemasons. It would become official in 1662. The Society would become the world's foremost knowledge filter in establishing what would be considered scientifically true or heretical. Britain enacted the Navigations Act to regulated colonial commerce to fit the ~~needs of England~~ needs of England.

1661 AD (5555 AM): 445 Before Armageddon/ 3899 After Flood

Europeans report appearance of a comet in January. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1664 AD (5558 AM): 442 Before Armageddon/ 3902 After Flood/ 2376 Orbital-Alteration/ 1188 Fall of Rome/ 1400 Coptic Calendar

The English take over New Amsterdam on Manhatta Island and rename it New York. (1) This city would become the financial epicenter for global commerce, a great metropolis with steel and glass towers to heaven. The Black Death plague strikes London for the 5th time since 1593 when it first appeared. The following year would see the greatest loss of life. (2) Astronomer Robert Hook discovered the Red Spot on the surface of Jupiter, an unusual gigantic region about the size of Earth that appears to move around in a liquid state that never wanders too far from its latitude, as if tethered to the area. (3) This was the 4000th year since the birth of Shem in 2337 BC, ancestral patriarch of the Semities.

1. The Age of Reason 85; 2. The Mask of Nostradamus 59; 3. Our Haunted planet 73

NOTE: comet seen in November according to Europeans. (Introduction to Comets 16)

1665 AD 5559 AM): 441 Before Armageddon/ 3903 After Flood

The Black Death plague in London, England alone killed 68,596 people, but estimates of the total death toll in England was closer to 100,000 between this and 1666. (1) This is the 72nd year since the arrival of the plague in 1593. (2) In March a blue silky substance fell from a clear blue sky in great quantities near Naumberg. (3)

1. Great Disasters 85; 2. The Mask of Nostradamus 59; 3. Book of the ~~Dead~~ ^{DAMNED} 44

1666 AD (5560 AM): 440 Before Armageddon/ 4480 ~~After Flood~~ Anno Pyramid/ 3904 After Flood

The Great Fire of London devastates the city, many believing that it also rid them of the plague. This fire was first predicted by Nostradamus, and then later by William Lilly. The astrologer Lilly was summoned to stand before Parliament to prove himself, to show that it was not he that started the fires. Successfully defending himself, he was freed. (1) The Dutch fleet engaged the English at the mouth of the Thames river and saw 6000 English dead with only 800 Dutch fatalities. The English lost 23 vessels. (2) This was the 600th year

since the Norman invasion of England in 1066 AD. The lutheran Prelate Benedict Carpzov died, a fanatic who had condemned to death over 20,000 women. (3) An astronomical observatory established in Paris, France and King Louis XIV established the Paris Meridian, a longitudinal line that ran straight through Paris on a Franco-Centric map. John Milton completes his epic Paradise Lost (published the following year) concerning the Fall of Man. Sir Isaac Newton invents the mirror telescope. Concerning telescopes, in this year Gian Domenico Sassini reported that he had discovered ice caps at the polar extremities on the planet Mars. (4) It is to be noted that Cassini at this time did not mention seeing any moons orbiting Mars, which would not be discovered until 1877 AD. Many believe these two moon around Mars recently appeared in orbit. John Aubrey studied Stonehenge and discovered the famous Aubrey Holes. (4)

1. Sages and Seers 60; 2. March of the Titans 226; 3. Christ: The Power and the Passion 98; 4. The First Genesis 299; 5. The Stone Angle 4

1667 AD (5561 AM): 439 Before Armageddon/ 3905 After Flood/ 3113 After Exodus

A Dutch fleet sailed up the Thames river in England and destroyed much shipping. (1) The Anglo-Dutch hostilities were concerning the English takeover of New Amsterdam, renamed New York. In August a hurricane destroyed the first English colony, Jamestown. In November at Shemakha, China an earthquake killed 80,000 people. (2)

1. March of the Titans 226; 2. Natural Disasters

1668 AD (5562 AM): 438 Before Armageddon/ 5040 Olmec Calendar/ 3906 After Flood/ 1980 Seleucid Calendar/

The famous English pirate Henry Morgan took the leading Spanish port on the American Atlantic coast, Portobelo. (1) Hevelius in his Cometographia wrote about the Great Comet that was seen in the year of the Exodus ~~8333~~ (1447 BC). (2) Robert Hook proposes that fossils can be used as a source of information about Earth's early history. (3) A huge 116 carat diamond of bluish color was stolen from ~~India~~ India and brought to King Louis XIV. ~~In~~ In 1673 a court jeweler would cut it down to 67 carats and the French would call it the Blue Crown Diamond. this is the origin of the Hope Diamond. ~~63333333~~ (4)

1. ~~B~~ A Patriot's History of the United States 11; 2. Worlds in Collision: Velikovsky; 3. Human Accomplishment 176; 4. The World's Most Mysterious Objects 13; ~~8~~

1669 AD (5563 AM): 437 Before Armageddon/ 3907 After Flood

On March 17th on the town of Chatillon-sur-Siene, a reddish liquid rained that was thick and putrid. (1) Mount Etna in Sicily erupted, attended with tremors and quakes from March 8th to the 11th, leaving 100,000 people dead. (2)

1. Book of the ~~Dead~~ Damned 44; 2. Great Disasters 91

1670 AD (5564 AM): 436 Before Armageddon/ 3908 After Flood/ 2600 Divided Kingdom

A monk suffering an ~~ain~~ ailment at a hermitage at Mount Ararat rewarded the physician who cured him, a Dutchman named Jans Janszoon Struys, with a small carved cross carved out of a dark and very heavy wood, seemingly petrified. The monk claimed that the wood was the ancient timber taken from the wreckage of an old ship high upon the glacial mountain said to be Noah's Ark. The Dutchman took the relic to St. ~~peter~~ peter's Church in Rome. (1)

1. In Search of Noah's Ark 78

1671 AD (5565 AM): 435 Before Armageddon/ 3909 After Flood/ 1407 Coptic Calendar

Jean Picard's Mesure de la Terre provides an estimate of the Earth's size accurate to within 90 feet. (1) The British philosopher Henry More released his book, Enchiridion Metaphysicum, wherein he argued for the existence of a fourth dimension beyond our senses that serves as a home to spirits and demons. (2)

1. Human Accomplishment 176; 2. Hyperspace 21

1672 AD (5566 AM): 434 Before Armageddon/ 3910 After Flood

A comet reported by Europeans in February. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1673 AD (5567 AM): 433 Before Armageddon/ 3911 After Flood/ 2448 Olympiad ~~XXXXXX~~ Year

Around August European explorers discovered a painting on an 80 ft. high cliff of piasa (local name for "monster."). The monster painting had a large humanoid face with antlered horns and great wings that looked almost identical to the 2nd millennium depictions of cherub guardians in Mesopotamia. It has been photographed in modern times and was located above the Mississippi river near Alton, Illinois, recorded by Father Marquette and since seen by thousands.

1675 AD (5569 AM): 431 Before Armageddon/ 3913 After Flood

Many indian tribes came together under the indian leader Metacomet and made war against the English settlers. This was known at the colonies as King Philips War. It would end in disaster for the indians in the following year. (1) The Greenwich Observatory founded in London and like France, England also made their maps Anglo-Centric with the Prime Meridian running north-south through England rather than France, though this would not yet be made official until later, and adopted by the entire world even after this.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States of America 31

1676 AD (5570 AM): 430 Before Armageddon/ 3914 After Flood/ 1600 Saka Calendar/ 1200 Fall of Rome

The indian confederation forces were defeated by the colonists, ending King Philips War. (1) Rebel planters under Nathaniel Bacon burned the town of Jamestown in defiance of the British authority. This is exactly 100 years before the 13 Colonies of England would declare their Independence from England in 1776.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 31

1677 AD (5571 AM): 429 Before Armageddon/ 3915 After Flood

A comet recorded by Europeans in April. (1) Danish astronomer Olaf Roemer studied the moons of Jupiter, especially ~~the~~ Io and its eclipse times, developing a theory that light has speed, a concept unheard of at the time as all researchers had accepted that light appeared instantaneously. (2) Now we know that light travels at 186,000 miles per ~~hour~~ second. It is interesting that the ~~the~~ moons of far distant Jupiter were being studied at a time when Mars was also seriously studied and seen to have no moons, though two moons were suddenly there orbiting Mars in 1877.

1. Introduction to Comets 16; 2. Cosmic Codes 344

1678 AD (5572 AM): 428 Before Armageddon/ 3916 After Flood/ 1152 Anno Domini

The first artistic depiction of a crop circle (agriglyph) is made. The locals called the

apparition that made the crop circle the Mowing Devil. (1) The crop circle phenomenon will spike amazingly in the 1990s and the first decade fo the 2000s. A gigantic astroid/ cometary body passes through the inner solar system crossing over the ecliptic on its 92 year orbit (40 years above ecliptic, 52 years below) to collide into the North American continent in 2046 AD.

1. Crop Circles, Gods and Their Secrets 39

1680 AD (5574 AM): 426 Before Armageddon/ 3918 After Flood

The Anunnaki planet NIBIRU ~~x~~ is at aphelion (furthest distance from the sun), the final aphelion before it returns to nearly collide into Earth in 2046, beginning its 366 year journey back toward the inner solar system. A comet appeared in December and was studied by a student of Hevelius named George Dorffel, also by John Flamsteed and Edmund Halley. Later Isaac Newton wrote about it. ~~xx~~ (1)

1. Intrødution to Comets 13, 16, The Mask of Nostradamus 240

1682 AD (5576 AM): 424 Before Armageddon/ 3920 After Flood/

A comet appeared and was studied by Edmund Halley. He realized that the unusual retrograde motion resembled the comet of 1607 and the Great Comet of 1456. He predicted that the same comet would return in 1758. Though he was correct in that it was the same comet, he was wrong about its return, which was in 1759. (1) This was later named Halleys Comet.

1. Introduction to Comets 14

1683 AD (5577 AM): 423 Before Armageddon/ 3921 After Flood

A comet reported in July by Europeans. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1684 AD (5578 AM): 422 Before Armageddon/ 3922 After Flood/ 1728 Roman Julian

A comet recorded in May by Europeans. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets~~x~~ 16

1685 AD (5579 AM): 421 BEfore Armageddon/ 3923 After Flood

King ~~x~~ Louis XIV of France in the Edict of Nantes declared France to be a Catholic state, a bad move for the nation, for 200,000 Protestants fled the country, among them the nation's most skilled artisans and people of affluence. Most of these people made their way to North America. (1) Like the earlier English colonies, North America was being peopled with Europeans escaping religious persecution. King James II ascends the English throne and like a dictator he recalls the New England and Middle Colony charters violating constitutionalism ~~xx~~ and the sanctity of contracts. (2)

1. March of the Titans 185-186; 2. A Patriot's History of the United States 36

1686 AD (5580 AM): 420 Before Armageddon/ 4500 Anno Pyramid/ 3924 After Flood/ 1998
Seleucid Calendar

A comet recorded by Europeans in September. (1) King James II of England created a centralized political state over the English colonies called the Dominion of New England. The Colonial Legislatures were dismissed, town meetings forbidden and the militia's were forbidden to operate without the approval of the King's appointee in Boston. This resulted in

the colonial rebellions which last until 1689. The Dominion of New England came to nothing. (2)

1. Introduction to Comets 16; 2. A Patriot's History of the United States 36

1687 AD (5581 AM): 419 Before Armageddon/ 3925 After Flood

A terrible quake at Callao, Peru results in massive loss of life and property. The famous Greek structure, the Parthenon, was ruined by the ~~Italians~~ Italians over 21 centuries after the Greeks erected it. The Parthenon was adorned with relief of the War of the Titans and Giants, the Trojan War as well as of Nereus, the Aegean Noah. William Stukeley born this year, an antiquarian interested in Stonehenge, who died in 1765. (1) Intriguingly, this parallels the 1687 BC damaging of the Stonehenge complex during the earthquakes that transpired as Phoenix transited between Earth and the sun, the rebuilding of ~~the~~ site being Stonehenge III. Sir Isaac Newton's discoveries are published in his Principia Mathematica, a text still regarded as one of the greatest scientific works ever composed. (2) ~~XX~~ In it he predicts that the Earth is nonspherical (3), which he is correct. This led to the discovery of the Equatorial Bulge.

1. Ancient Mysteries 468; 2. God's Laughter 25

1688 AD (5582 AM): 418 Before Armageddon/ 4800 Mayan Calendar/ 3926 After Flood/ 2000 Seleucid Calendar

Emmanuel Swedenborg born at Stockholm, Sweden, a truly remarkable spiritual giant and prolific writer who died in 1772.

1689 AD (5583 AM): 417 Before Armageddon/ 3927 After Flood

American English colonials staged an armed insurrection in Boston against British governor Sir Edmund Andros of New York on the 108th day of the year (April 18th). The English Civil War between the Whigs and Tories resulted in King James II being exiled while Parliament drafted the Declaration of Rights, an historical document declaring that the king and queen was not supreme but shared authority with the English Legislature and the Courts. Free speech and right to petition was made and ~~excessive~~ excessive bail and cruel and unusual punishment forbidden. This document also upheld the ~~right~~ right of English Protestants to keep and to bear arms. It was these concepts that would later galvanize into the American Declaration of Independence, Articles of Confederation, the U.S. Constitution exactly 100 years later in 1789, and the Bill of Rights. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 36-37

1690 AD (5584 AM): 416 Before Armageddon/ ~~3928~~ 3928 After Flood

The astronomer Cassini observed what appeared to be a comet colliding into Jupiter through his telescope. (1) A comet would again collide into Jupiter in 1994 AD and be photographed.

1. Introduction to Comets 340

1691 AD (5585 AM): 415 Before Armageddon/ 3929 After Flood

The Aztecs unwillingly collected their ~~sacred~~ sacred books and brought them to the Spanish bishop Nunez de la Vega, who promptly burned them all. (1) The Roman Catholic authorities had already done this to the Inca and the Maya.

1. The Problem of Atlantis 114

1692 AD (558⁶ AM): 414 Before Armageddon/ 6000 Phoenix Chronology/ 3930 After Flood/ 1736 Roman Julian

An earthquake struck Port Royal, Jamaica, which was a haven for thieves, pirates, ~~pirates~~

smugglers and slavers, a black market paradise where buyers could purchase stolen ships and even cargoes. This was one of the busiest ports in the West ~~XXXX~~ Indies. The quake sent a tidal wave into the port and city and the earth vibrated opening up under the feet and many people, swallowing them up to their necks before the ground began compressing, squeezing the victims to death. (1) An unusually putrid rain fell upon Germany. (2) At Salem, Massachusettes, 143 people were accused of witchcraft after wildly circulating rumors but 19 were actually hanged on what came to be called Witch's Hill, and one man was pressed to death. Later all of their convictions were reversed after they were dead subsequent to new ~~inquiries~~ inquiries. Some blame the popular hysteria over witchcraft at that time on Cotton Mather, an imaginative writer, the son of the preacher Increase Mather. The Salem Witch Trials has since become a world-famous event.

1. Pirates: Terror on the High Seas p. 50-51; 2. Commentaries on the Occult Philosophy of Agrippa 67-68

1693 AD (5587 AM): 413 Before Armageddon/ 3931 After Flood

An earthquake in Catania, Italy killed 60,000 people.

1694 AD (5588 AM): 412 Before Armageddon/ 3932 After Flood/ 3100 Year of Israel

The Bank of England started, a privately owned business allowed because it loaned a lot of money to King William III of England with the agreement that the Bank could issue notes to the full extent of its capital. This bank created nonexistent money from the interest it received on monies loaned that it had created using paper notes. (1) Edmund Halley proposed to the Royal Society that Noah's Flood (2239 BC) had been caused by the collision of a comet into Earth. (2) ~~Eighty~~ Eighty years after their published presence in 1614, the Rosicrucians founded a colony in North America where Pennsylvania is today. Their artistic building in Ephrata (Ephraim) still stands today. (3) Francois Marie Arouet was born in Paris, known to the world as the philosopher Voltaire.

1. The Synagogue of Satan 28; 2. Ancient Civilizations 92; 3. Ancient Mysteries 3; 3. Gods of Eden: Bramley 275

1696 AD (5590 AM): 410 Before Armageddon/ 3934 After Flood/ 2448 Year of Rome/

The Reverend William Whiston was a friend of Edmund Halley and the personal laboratory assistant to Sir Isaac Newton. Whiston began preaching that comets were responsible for several of the Old Testament astronomical occurrences, as well as the Great Flood and that comets were a large part of the future Apocalypse. He was a mathematician and wrote a book entitled The Cause of the Flood Demonstrated published in 1711. (1)

1. Prophets of Doom 126

1698 AD (5592 AM): 408 Before Armageddon/ 3936 After Flood

A comet reported by Europeans in October. (1)

1. Introduction to Comets 16

1699 AD (5593 AM): 407 Before Armageddon/ 3937 After Flood

An earthquake killed 400,000 people in China. (1)

1. The Portable Voltaire 556

1701 AD (5595 AM): 405 Before Armageddon/ 3939 After Flood

Yale University founded. The Masonic Constitution is drafted, telling of those who lived

before the Great Flood and discovered geometry, the Building Craft and how all their scientific secrets and knowledge was inscribed upon the surfaces to two huge pillars (pyramids in Egypt).

1703 AD (5597 AM): 403 Before Armageddon/ 3941 After Flood

Flooding kills 100,000 people in Awa, Japan.

1705 AD (5599 AM): 401 Before Armageddon/ 3943 After Flood/ 2480 Olympiad Year

Edmund Halley of England published his A Synopsis of the Astronomy of Comets which included data of orbits of comets and the first prediction of the return of a comet (Halley's Comet). (1)

1. Human Accomplishment 164

1706 AD (5600 AM): 400 Before Armageddon/ 5376 Jewish Calendar/ 3944 After Flood

The illustrious Benjamin Franklin born, a prodigy of intellectual ~~energy~~ energy and spirit, a man destined to be one of the most important movers in the American Independence movement. He was born exactly 3552 years after the birth of Isaac in 1847 BC, 3552 being 1776+1776 years, a major Golden Proportion number and also the Anno Domini year (1776 AD) of the Declaration of American Independence. Benjamin Franklin was a patriarch of the United States just as Isaac was the patriarch over ~~Israel~~ Israel. ~~This 3552 years parallels the 3552 years from the Exodus of Israel from Egypt in 1447 BC to the birth of the United States of America in 1776 AD,~~ the New Israel prophetically known as the Empire of Adoption, as Ephraim (doubly bountiful). In this year French forces entered Spanish Aragon and uncovered the ghastly work of the Spanish Inquisition, human bodies mangled and abused beyond recognition. They also found a harem belonging to the Inquisitor-General where 60 young women were kept for the Inquisitor's pleasure. (1) Since then many Roman Catholic nunneries have been discovered to be little more than prisons and dungeons full of hapless sex slaves, boys and girls, for the pleasure of the priests.

1. Popery: Foe of the Church p. 220

1707 AD (5601 AM): 399 Before Armageddon/ 3945 After Flood/ 3113 Year of Israel

England, Scotland and Wales are united forming the United Kingdom. Volcanic activity on Santorini recorded, the same volcano that erupted during the Ten Plagues ~~over~~ over Egypt in 1447 BC.

1708 AD (5602 AM): 398 Before Armageddon/ 3946 After Flood

William Whiston, pupil of Sir Isaac Newton, published a book explaining that a comet caused Noah's Flood, thus enraging Newton. (1)

1. Ancient Mysteries 5

1709 AD (5603 AM): 397 Before Armageddon/ 3947 After Flood/ 2484 Olympiad Year

The very first daily newspaper began in London, England. (1)

1. Emmanuel Swedenborg 25

1714 AD (5608 AM): 392 Before Armageddon/ 5152 Descent of Watchers/ 3952 After Flood/
1188 Anno Domini Begun

The mercury thermometer invented, paving the way for the regulation of temperature in the development of engines and machines.

1718 AD (5612 AM): 388 Before Armageddon/ 3956 After Flood/ 1242 Fall of Rome

Edward Teach from Bristol, England began a world-famous sea career as a privateer but ended

having two unusually-shaped moons with unusual orbits. Incredibly, though astronomers had studied Mars since the invention of the telescope, no moons had ever been seen, not even in 1727, but in 1877 two irregularly shaped moons with odd orbits were first witnessed by Asaph Hall in 1877, 150 years later.

1. Introduction to Comets 13

1727 AD (5621 AM): 379 Before Armageddon/ 3965 After Flood

The Jews in Russia are accused of ~~financial~~ malpractices and expelled from the country. (1)
financial

1. March of the Titans 313

1728 AD (5622 AM): 378 Before Armageddon/ 3966 After Flood/ 2480 Year of Rome/ 2040 Seleucid Calendar

Astronomer James Bradley discovers that light has speed, this discovery published 52 years after that of Roemer's discovery of the same thing in 1677. Bradley's discovery published in 1729. (1)

1. Cosmic Codes 344

1730 AD (5624 AM): 376 Before Armageddon/ 5400 Jewish Calendar/ 3968 After Flood/

Earthquake activity begins and lasts for 5 years to 1735 in the Canary Islands, releasing noxious gases that kill much wildlife. (1) A quake at Hokkaido, Japan killed 137,000 people. A gigantic astroid/comet passed through the inner solar system on its 92 year orbit (40 years above ecliptic) on its way to collide into North American continent in 2046.

1. Antediluvian World 33

1731 AD (5625 AM): 375 Before Armageddon/ 3969 After Flood

From Florence is witnessed a ~~XX~~ luminous cloud moving across the sky at a high velocity accompanied by an earthquake on December 9th. (1)

1. Book of the Damned 176

1732 AD (5626 AM): 374 Before Armageddon/ 3970 After Flood/ 2484 Year of Rome/ 1776 Roman Julian/ 1656 Saka Calendar

This was the final year that England would have only 12 colonies in North America, for in the following year the 13th Colony would be admitted, the number of colonies that rebelled against Britain and became the United States of America, the fulfilled prophetic type of the 13 Tribes of Israel, the 13th being ~~the~~ the Tribe of Adoption (Manasseh/Ephraim of Joseph). On May 28th over Swabia are seen fiery globes passing through the sky preceding an earthquake. (1) This year was 1776 of the Roman Julian calendar.

1. Book of the Damned 176

1733 AD (5627 AM): 373 Before Armageddon/ 3971 After Flood

The 13th Colony is added to the English colonies in North America, Georgia, founded by debtors and prisoners who were sent from England. The Georgians welcomed all religious refugees, including Jews, but they refused to admit any Catholics. (1) More and more white Europeans were turning their attention to these colonies. The prosperity of the English colonies was the source of much fascination in Europe. E.G. White wrote that "...it was demonstrated that the principles of the Bible are the surest safeguards of national greatness, the feeble and isolated colonies grew to a confederation of powerful States; and the world

marked with wonder the peace and prosperity of 'a church without a pope and a State without a king.'" (2) With the start of Georgia began the fulfillment of future Israel as Ephraim, the adopted Tribe, meaning doubly fruitful, the Tribe of Adoption that would be made from all the tribes combined, i.e. all the peoples of the nations of Europe and the Mediterranean where the descendants of the 13 Tribes of Israel were scattered, which is the subject of Chronicon I.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 48; 2. Planet in Rebellion 62

1735 AD (5629 AM): 371 Before Armageddon/ 3973 After Flood

This date marks another Great Awakening revival, this time regional, in Massachusetts. The religious ~~xx~~ freedom of the American colonies was unmatched anywhere else in the world, no religious authority or civil one exercised their will over the Christians of the colonies.

1736 AD (5630 AM): 370 Before Armageddon/ 3974 After Flood/ 3182 After Exodus/ 2448 Orbital-Alteration/ 1260 Fall of Rome

England repeals the witchcraft statutes which were being used to hunt and murder many innocent people, mostly women.

1737 AD (5631 AM): 369 Before Armageddon/ 3975 After Flood

An earthquake at Calcutta, India killed 300,000 people. Over Carpentras, France it rained soil and dirt from the sky on October 18th. ~~xx~~ (1)

1. Book of the Damned 176-177

1738 AD (5632 AM): 368 Before Armageddon/ 3976 After Flood

The Jews of Russia are again expelled after allegations of financial malpractice. (1)

1. March of the Titans 313

1740 AD (5634 AM): 366 Before Armageddon/ 6048 Phoenix Chronology/ 3978 After Flood/ 2484 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 2052 Seleucid Calendar

Telescope maker and astronomer James Short discovered a moonlike object near Venus passing through the inner solar system. This was not the first time as seen in Chronicon II that a moonlike object has been seen near Venus, and again in 1759 another one will be seen. This is 6048 years of the Phoenix Chronology, or 864x7 years.

1741 AD (5635 AM): 365 Before Armageddon/ 3979 After Flood

Spreading from Massachusetts, now all the American colonies experience the Great Awakening, a period of tremendous religious growth when Church attendance soared and large open-air meetings occurred, preachers travelling from town to town. This was termed New Light Christianity. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 43

1742 AD (5636 AM): 364 Before Armageddon/ 3980 After Flood/

For a third time the Jews are expelled from Russia, again for ~~xxxx~~ financial malpractice. (1) Even at this early date Jewish antagonists tried to infiltrate the Christian Empire of Russia, and unfortunately, one of the greatest human tragedies to occur would be the Jewish Bolshevik takeover of Russia and their extermination of millions of Christian Russians after 1917.

1. March of the Titans 313

1743 AD (5637 AM): 363 Before Armageddon/ 3981 After Flood

Count St. Germain first appeared in London, a man of unknown origin who could speak all of the European languages fluently. He maintained vast social skills, claimed to have lived for centuries by virtue of an Elixir of life, even claiming to have been alive when Jesus and Cleopatra lived. St. Germain astounded European historians with his immense historical knowledge and Voltaire said that St. Germain knew everything. St. Germain claimed that his extraordinary knowledge came by virtue of having "...studied in the pyramids." (1) Because ~~xx~~ by erudition it is easy to fool many, by no means it is easy to fool everyone. The person of St. Germain is indeed a profound mystery begging the question: was he even human?

1. Rule by Secrecy 251-252

1744 AD (5638 AM): 362 Before Armageddon/ 3982 After Flood/ 2488 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 1480 Coptic Calendar

The Jews are expelled from Slovakia. (1) The Great Daytime Comet appears terrifying Europe, a comet that filled the sky with seven tails. In England there was mass apocalyptic fear that the world was going to end. ~~XXX~~ (2) Astronomers named it Comet De Cheseau. This was 2488 years ~~XXXX~~ (1244+1244) after the Ten Tribes of Israel were deported by Assyria in 745 BC, the Annus Mundi year 2488 being 1407 BC when the nation of Israel began at the Conquest of Canaan. Jews also expelled out of Moravia and Bohemia. (3)

1. Jewish Supremacism 199; 2. End of Eden 163; 3. Jewish Supremacism 199

~~1746 AD (5640 AM): 360 Before Armageddon/ 3984 After Flood~~

~~British policies concerning the American colonies had by this time caused the Americans to feel a strong feeling of independence from England and Europe. British meddling alienated them more and more. (1)~~

~~1. A Patriot's History of the United States 38~~

1746 AD (5640 AM): 360 Before Armageddon/ 3984 After Flood

Princeton College founded by Protestants, orientated toward religious and moral philosophy.

1749 AD (5643 AM): 357 Before Armageddon/ ~~XXXX~~ 3987 After Flood

A storm at the West Azores uncovered a broken cask in the sand that contained a ~~xxxxxx~~ mass of ancient coins. Numismatists studied the coins and reported them to be Carthaginian from the 4th and 3rd century BC. (1)

1. How the SunGod Reached America 3-9

1751 AD (5645 AM): 355 Before Armageddon/ 3989 After Flood

A particularly damaging forgery of the Book of Jasher is published at Bristol, England. This copy came to the attention of scholars and they quite correctly labelled it a forgery, the real translation of the Book of Jasher ignored by academics because of the controversy. It is possible that the forgeries (another forgery published in 1829) were designed to scare off the serious researcher, as the Book of Jasher is an amazing and ancient chronology of the Old World, a book mentioned twice in the Old Testament.

1752 AD (5646 AM): 354 Before Armageddon/ 3990 After Flood/ 1488 Coptic Calendar

On April 15th over Slavenge, Norway was seen in the heavens a strange star of octogonal shape and balls of fire fell from the sky, a streak across the sky seen from Augermannland. § (1) This was exactly 3600 years (600x6) after the destruction of Sodom and Gomorrah and the

Indus Valley cities in 1849 BC. In this year Benjamin Franklin proved that lightning is electricity and theorized that it could somehow be harnessed. The famous Liberty Bell was cast in England and delivered to Isaac Norris who ordered it in Pennsylvania, bearing the inscription from the book of Leviticus 25:10: "PROCLAIM LIBERTY THROUGHOUT ALL THE LAND UNTO ALL THE INHABITANTS THEREOF." This same year the Bell cracked and the colonial American company Pass & Stow recast the Bell with less copper and more iron (to be expected from a nation to become an Iron empire). In this year Great Britain finally adopted the Gregorian Calendar implemented by ~~xxxxx~~ Pope Gregory XIII and decreed that the calendrical system would also be adopted by the 13 Colonies of America. September 2nd thus became September 14th and all dates prior to the alteration were designated OS for Old Style.

1. Book of the Damned 177

1753 AD (5647 AM): 353 Before Armageddon/ 3991 After Flood

The Liberty Bell is placed in the Philadelphia State House and was used by the Continental Congress.

1754 AD (5648 AM): 352 Before Armageddon/ 3992 After Flood/ 3200 After Exodus

George Washington leads the Colonial Militia in the French and Indian War, the 13 Colonies allied to the five nations of the Iroquois Indians against the French, a war fought between French Canada and the British colonies. (1) The French capture a British fort and Washington leads 160 Militiamen and builds Fort Mifflin. The French with their own Indian allies seized the fort and with no food or supplies, torrential rains having dampened their gun powder, Washington surrendered on July 4th as 2000 men seized his small unit. George was a devout Colonial loyal to the English and the son of the Christian mystic Mary Ball. She raised George to believe that fear and cowardice were sins and that courage was faith that God could see him through all trials. Missionaries in South America discovered Phoenician inscriptions on toppled pillars in the Amazon jungle. (2) Jean de Alembert published his articles entitled Dimension where he postulated that TIME was the fourth dimension. (3)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 54-55; 2. The Lost Treasure of King Juba 162; 3. Hyperspace p. 59

1755 AD (5649 AM): 351 Before Armageddon/ 3993 After Flood/ 1229 Anno Domini Begun

George Washington of the Colonial Militia advised British General Braddock on the unusual guerilla tactics employed in North America, explaining that European-type warfare was not conducted in America. The Indians had taught the English colonials about this style of fighting, a method unknown to the Redcoats. General Braddock ignored George Washington and marched 1000 Redcoats and 300 Colonials toward Fort Duquesne. The French were warned of the British advance, obtained ~~xxxxx~~ help from their Indian allies and even the aid of an old Indian sharpshooter with an established reputation for having never missed a target. The sharpshooter was employed by the French to kill George Washington, who was feared more so over that of General Braddock. On July 9th, only miles away from the fort, 300 concealed French and Indian soldiers fired upon and killed or wounded 800 of General Braddock's men. While the Redcoats fled in panic, George Washington stood his ground, commanding the 300 Colonials who trusted him from past experience, fighting off the ambush. The old Indian shot at Washington and was amazed that he missed, shot again and again and a fourth time, all missing the towering enemy commander. The Indian was spooked because he knew he did not miss those shots. General Braddock died in the ambush and years later after the war the old Indian visited the camp of George Washington at the Virginia Colony, explaining that it was he that had shot him those four times for the French. George pulled out the old coat he had worn in that battle and showed the Indian the four bullet holes, but told him that not a bullet hit his body. The Indian concluded that George was "charmed", fated to never die in battle. This visit was in 1762, thirteen years before the Revolutionary War. (1)

On June 7th a quake in Persia killed 40,000 people. This was followed in November on All

Saints Day by a transcontinental earthquake that shook the lands and seas from the Baltic to the West Indies, and Canada to Egypt, Algiers, Morocco, throughout northern Africa up to Germany, Holland, Spain and France. About 10,000 people in Morocco were swallowed by the earth and the world famous port of Lisbon, Portugal was worst afflicted. An expansive ~~granite~~ granite quay fractured off and plunged into the sea drowning 60,000 people who had fled to it thinking it was the safest place. Whole ships in the ~~harbor~~ harbor were pulled underwater as the city trembled and burned. Not a trace of these unfortunate people or ships were ever found—no clothes, no bodies, no driftwood, the seafloor in that region dropping 600 feet. By 2 PM as far as England that day it was noted that the ocean was unusually restless with high waves. (3) Both England and Scotland were ~~sh~~ shaken by the mighty quake causing the people to fast and pray at specially held services. (4) The churches throughout were full of people, being All Saint's Day, and these buildings killed many. (5) About 85% of Lisbon was destroyed, and lost among the ruins were a collection of ancient artifacts of Roman vintage that had been excavated in Peru. (6) At the same time of the earthquake the warm springs of Teplitz, Bohemia disappeared, but later sprouted forth again. A volcano in Iceland erupted followed by an uprising and then subsidence of the water of Loch Lomond in Scotland. (7) Just ~~two~~ two weeks prior to the earthquakes many meteorites were seen brightly directly over Lisbon, Portugal. (8)

1. Uncommon Sense 104-107; 2. The Antediluvian World 40/ Book Tree dit.;
3. Great Disasters 96; 4. The Complete Story of the San Francisco Horror 26;
5. The Story of Philosophy 292; 6. The Lost Treasure of King Juba 160;
7. The Complete Story of the San Francisco Horror 239; ~~8.~~ 8. Book of the Damned 177

1758 AD (5652 AM): 348 Before Armageddon/ 3996 After Flood/ 2070 Seleucid Calendar

Britain's new secretary of State, William Pitt, implemented a policy of total war against the French in India, ~~the~~ Africa, the West Indies and America as well as on the high seas. He assembled a 50,000-man army to attack the French forts. (1)

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 55

1759 AD (5653 AM): 347 Before Armageddon/ 3997 After Flood

With 200 ships the British land 10,000 troops at the foot of the steep cliffs of Quebec City in Canada, which fell to the British in the war between England and France. (1) Astronomers report seeing a huge planetary-sized object passing through the inner solar system. Also, Halley's Comet appeared. It was a bright apparition and it renewed ~~scientific~~ scientific interest in comets. The only known appearances of Halley's Comet were in 1456, 1531, 1607, 1682, 1759, 1835, ~~1910~~ 1910 and 1986. The 1531 appearance may not have been Halley's as the actual timing call for a 1532 appearance, and indeed, in 1532 a comet was reported, though astronomers fix the apparition at 1531. The comet's orbit is ~~72°~~ 72° inclined to the ecliptic, moving in a retrograde orbit. Like planets Phoenix and NIBIRU this steep incline hints that all three orbit along the ecliptic of a Dark Star, a sister-star that has collapsed but is still gravitationally locked to Sol. In this year Frederick Norden Lewis surveyed the Giza site at Egypt in his study of the Great Pyramid, noting the abundant sea shells and petrified ~~oysters~~ oysters around the monument (Great Pyramid and Egyptian Delta underwater for 340 years). Sea shells have been found all the way to the base of the Great Pyramid. (2) Lewis also found evidence that the Sphinx at one time had been painted, that elaborate wings were painted along its flanks. (3) This supports the archaic notion that the Sphinx was an image of the biblical Tetramorph, the divine cherubim angels with the features of a Bull, Lion, Eagle and Man, like the Four Quadrants of the heavenly Zodiac. An earthquake destroys Roman architecture at Baalbek in Lebanon.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 56; 2. Secret Places of the Lion 19;
3. The Secret in the Bible 123

1760 AD (5654 AM): 346 Before Armageddon/ 3998 After Flood

Montreal in Canada fell to the British. (1) Mayer Amschel Bauer begins his banking career in Germany and changes his name to Mayer Amschel Rothschild. (2) No figure, real or imagined, since the time of Jesus, has ever affected the course of human events more than Mayer Amschel Rothschild. But unlike Christ, this man's legacy would see humanity into the ~~das~~ darkest times of human tragedy. The Rothschilds would fund entire nations to make war against one another through extensive international banking loans, both sides of each conflict funded by the same family: the Rothschilds. ~~o~~ George III becomes King of England.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 56; 2. The Synagogue of Satan 31

1762 AD (5656 AM): 344 Before Armageddon/ 7000 Anunnaki Chronology/ 5800 Orbital ~~o~~ Chronology/ 5200 Descent of Watchers/ 4600 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 4000 After Flood/ ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~

Catherine the Great of Russia forbid all Jews from living in the country, but many ignored the edict and it was not enforced. (1) A Parliament of France ordered the expulsion of all the Jesuits due to their moral character, espionage and insurgent activities. (2) Astronomers report the appearance of numerous black objects passing between earth and the sun. These are again seen in 1763 and 1764. (3) This is the 7000th year of the Anunnaki Chronology, exactly 4000 years after the Great Flood.

1. March of the Titans 313; 2. Popery: Foe of the Church 279; 3. Cataclysm! 349

1763 AD (5657 AM): 343 Before Armageddon/ 4001 After Flood

Astronomers view the passage of asteroids in ~~xxxxxx~~ strewn fields passing between earth and the sun. (1) By this date 15-20% of all Americans in the colonies were African origin, those free and slave, a larger per capita black population than in relatively modern America. (2)

1. Cataclysm! 349; 2. A Patriot's History of the United States 47

NOTE: an indian uprising along the Canadian border known as Pontiac's Rebellion occurred. Pontiac organized the assault on an capture of many forts. The English regrouped and defeated Pontiac's coalition. (A Patriot's History of the United States 58-59)

1764 AD (5658 AM): 342 Before Armageddon/ 4002 After Flood/ 1500 Coptic Calendar

Astronomers report that numerous black objects passed between earth and the sun. Planet Phoenix passed between earth and the sun in partial transit, described by witnesses who saw it cover one-fifth of the sun's surface. Astronomer Hoffman studied the gigantic planet by telescope and noted that it traveled on a north-to-south trajectory passing over the ecliptic plane. (1) This is the first modern scientific evidence for the existence of planet ~~Phoenix~~ Phoenix which was so feared and studied by the ancients, as detailed extensively in Chronicon I. Phoenix continues on its 138 years orbital journey perpendicular to the ecliptic where all the other planets, ~~o~~ excepting NIBIRU, travel around the sun. Phoenix initiated the Great Flood in 2239 BC (29 orbits earlier), then darkened the sun and caused earthquakes in 1687 BC ending the Old Bronze Age when Jacob's sons defeated the local Amorites and their Canaanite ~~xxxxxx~~ vassals after the rape of Dinah. Phoenix then passed through several times during epochal years of Israelite history and this appearance of Phoenix in 1764 ~~is~~ is no different, as the descendants of the 13 tribes of Israel are now amassing in the New Israel, North America, another Last Days land of milk and honey. The 13 Tribes have become major European nations and their most western extension is in the form of 13 English colonies. Britain passes the Currency Act in this year to stop the 13 Colonies from printing their own money (Colonial Script), forcing colonists to accept notes from the Bank of England, thus paying interest. (2) This Act caused a depression and widespread unemployment, catapulting the colonies into the American Revolution. Interestingly, as Phoenix

appeared throughout antiquity, in the same year of its visitations, empires and nations fell from power and new dynasties emerged. The "taxation without representation" was the pretext for the War, but the real reason for the revolt was that the Colonies were livid at having to borrow money from the Bank of England, thus creating inflation. The colonial tax measures also went into ~~xxx~~ effect and the Sugar Act which also placed duties on lumber, food, rum and molasses. (3) The Revolution was fueled by the Masons, this year of 1764 being a Masonic milestone. The Strictobservance lodges of Masonry were adopted in Germany, this being the Scottish Rite system. (4) Historians agree that by 1764 the colonists had adopted a strong feeling of independence from both England and Europe, and the British policies only served to alienate them further. (5)

In 1764 Johann Joachim Winkelmann published his ~~xxxxxx~~ History of Ancient Art which detailed the then-secret excavations ongoing at the Italian sites of Herculaneum and Pompeii that were buried by Mount Vesuvius in 79 AD. (6) Much of the works and relics at these sites have been withheld from public view due to their explicitly sexual tones and characteristics. Interestingly, in 1687 BC the volcanism caused by the near-transit of planet Phoenix buried cities even deeper than Pompeii and Herculaneum, cities ~~xxxx~~ buried alive that were only recently discovered. Nathaniel Davidson explored the interior of the Great Pyramid and discovered at the ceiling of the Grand Gallery a tunnel that led into the ~~Relieving~~ Relieving Chamber above the Kings Chamber. (7) Davidson wrote "1764" on the Great Pyramid upon a stone at the right of the entrance. (8) Also in 1764 the Jesuits were expelled from most of the European kingdoms for their political manipulations and conspiracies. The famous invention, the Spinning Jenny, was invented by James Hargreaves. (9) In 1764 the first nebula in deep space was documented, by Charles Messier, called M17. (10)

~~do~~

1. Cataclysm! 350; 2. Rule by Secrecy 66; 3. Gods of Eden: Bramley 277;
4. *ibid* p. 250; ~~92~~ 5. A Patriot's History of the United States 38; 6. The Discoverers: Boorstin 586; 7. The Secret of the Great Pyramid 147: Brier; 8. The Great Pyramids: Corteggiani 23; 9. Human Accomplishment 199;
10. Smithsonian, Feb. 2011, p. 78

1765 AD (5659 AM): 341 Before Armageddon/ 4003 After Flood

Britain passed the Stamp ~~xxxx~~ Act to pay for British troops stationed in the American colonies. It would be replaced in the following year as Britain grows worried over colonial hostilities.

1768 AD (5662 AM): 338 Before Armageddon/ ~~6076~~ Phoenix Chronology/ 4880 Mayan Calendar/ 4006 After Flood/ 2520 Year of Rome/ 1242 Anno Domini Begun

Very prominent year in calendrics for Europe. A meteor burned across the sky of North America clearly visible to all, visible for a full 20 seconds. The Shawnee called it Panther Passing Across and they knew that the Great Spirit wanted this to be the name of a child that was born at that night when the meteor was seen. History records this indian's name as Tecumseh, a man who would become a mighty warrior and leader of several native American peoples in their territorial struggle against the colonial Europeans who were rapidly expanding their own holdings. Tecumseh would die by treachery of his own brother, who was called The Prophet. (1)

1. A Sorrow in Our Heart: Allen W. Eckert (Bantam) p. 39-41

1769 AD (5663 AM): 337 Before Armageddon/ 4007 After Flood

The Royal Society of London sent out scientists aboard ships to points all over the world to view the Transit of Venus through their telescopes, first recorded by scientists in 1639. (1) Venus appears as a tiny dot against the background of the solar disk. The Spanish in California recorded earthquake at Santa Ana. (2)

1. The Age of Monarchs 185-186; 2. The Complete Story of the San Francisco Horror 245

1770 AD (5664 AM): 336 Before Armageddon/ 5440 Jewish Calendar/ 5208 Descent of Watchers/ 4608 Anunnaki Dynasty/ 4008 After Flood/ 2700 Divided Kingdom/ 1244 Anno Domini Begun

Comet Lexell passed within 1.39 million miles of Earth (1), the closest pass of a comet in known historical times. The sun is 93 million miles away and the moon an average of 238 thousand miles away. This same comet passed close to Jupiter, fragments and is seen no more. (2) In this same year a gigantic asteroid/comet passed through the inner system on a 92 years orbit journeying toward a collision with North America in 2046 AD. Contentions between Boston rope makers and British Redcoats quartered in the city led to the Boston Massacre. Though it was not exactly a full-fledge massacre, the event spread through the colonies involving hostility and outrage against England paving the way for the War of Independence. Britain by this time had agreed to lift many of the duties and taxes imposed on the colonials, but secretive groups like the Sons of Liberty and Masons deliberately sabotaged relations between Britain and the American colonies. The will to break away from England was already strong. Also in 1770 Mayer Amschel Rothschild drafted up the documents for the publication of the Illuminati program, only for select members and entrusted these materials into the care of Adam Weishaupt. (3) Rothschild is indirectly connected to the Illuminati conspiracy for One World Government by a select body of men rather than any national government, Rothschild's brainchild that he financed.

1. End of Eden 164; 2. Cataclysm! 200; 3. Synagogue of Satan 32

1772 AD (5666 AM): 334 Before Armageddon/ 4010 After Flood/ 2484 Orbital-Alteration

Comet seen and recorded by Montaigne and Messier, later named Biela which travels an elliptical path and orbits in 6.75 years. It would be seen in 1805, 1826, 1832 and 1842 when it fragmented. (1) Johannes Bode popularized the Titius-Bode Law of planetary distances from the surface of the sun which provided astronomers a frame of reference by which they could search the heavens for more planets belonging to the solar system. This search for more planetary bodies would lead to the 1801 discovery of the Asteroid Belt between the orbits of Mars and Jupiter. In the American colonies, John Adams' brother named Samuel Adams, founded the "committee of correspondence," a network that connected writers in the colonies who were driven with the agenda of breaking away from Britain, publishing a storm of letters, tracts and editorials. Through the intercolonial press the colonies became more and more American and less British. (2) Russia sets the Pale of Settlement forcing the Jews to relocate back to the countries they had originally been in before moving to Russia. Jewish infiltration of Russian society and government through financial practices had led to a series of clashes and the Russian government sought to end this by ridding themselves of the foreign elements: Jews.

1. Introduction to Comets 18-19; 2. The Patriot's History of the United States 66

1773 AD (5667 AM): 333 Before Armageddon/ 4011 After Flood

American colonials stage the Boston Tea Party. This was explained away as a protest against the British Tea tax, throwing away 342 chests of tea into the harbor, but the event was calculated to ensure that Britain would respond harshly. War was already sought and now the colonials were searching for pretexts. The writings of Samuel Adams popularized the "protest" and this led to a stronger spirit of oneness among the colonials. Nine days later, 700 chests of tea were dumped at Delaware but this was barely noticed. The torch of rebellion had already been lit. (1) Britain established the Stock Exchange and English captain James Cook made the first recorded landing at Antarctica. The monarchal families of Europe launch attacks against the Papacy due to the meddling of the Jesuits in political affairs, and on July 21 the Pope ended the Jesuit Order. James Bruce, a Scotsman, ventured into Africa and discovered among the Ethiopian Christians who claim Hebrew descent

through King Menelik I, son of the Queen of Sheba and Solomon ~~XXXX~~ (Jedidyah) a lost copy of the Book of Enoch. As with the early Christian movement, the Book of Enoch was original a part of the canon. Interestingly, the ancient book declares that it would be discovered the Last Days and translated into the known languages of the world. Indeed, this has occurred. In this year the ancient ruins of the city of Palenque were discovered. (2) At one time this had been a Mayan metropolis.

1. A Patriot's History of the United States 68; 2. The Mayan Prophecies for 2012 p. 51

1774 AD (5668 AM): 332 Before Armageddon/ 4012 After Flood/ 3672 After ~~XXXX~~ Babel/

The British passed the Intolerable Acts (as they were called by the colonials). The British seized Boston, invading the city and closing the harbor. Martial law is declared in Boston and British troops are forcefully quartered in the homes of the colonials. The Americans throughout all the colonies are enraged and the seeds of rebellion grow throughout the population as supplies and food are secretly smuggled into Boston to help the colonials. The First ~~XXXXXX~~ Continental Congress elects George Washington as its head.

1775 AD (5669 AM): 331 Before Armageddon/ 4013 After Flood/ 2550 Olympiad ~~XXXX~~ Year

As the British troops began advancing to destroy the colonial arsenals (militia), Paul Revere and William Dawes by horseback rode to alert the Patriots through the towns the Redcoats were travelling on. This famous nighttime ride was on April 18th, the 108th day of the year. The Continental Congress established Semper Paratus, a group of fighting men aboard all naval vessels who are now known as the U.S. Marine Corps. It is now believed that the famous name Paul Revere was an invention of Longfellow and that the man's real name was Dr. Samuel Prescott. (1)

1. The World's All Wrong p. 286

1776 AD (5670 AM): 330 Before Armageddon/ 6084 Phoenix Chronology/ 5814 Orbital Chronology/ 4590 Anno Pyramid/ 4014 After Flood/ 3182 Year of Israel/ 2520 Post-Exilic Chronology/ 2488 Orbital-~~Chronology~~ Alteration/ 1300 Fall of Rome/ 1700 Saka Calendar/ 264 ~~ys~~ yrs. to Global Cataclysm in ~~2040~~ May 2040 AD

One of the most fascinating years in the Anno Domini calendarics. On May 1 the Illuminati is officially begun, a widescale plan for a cabal of international bankers to ~~XXXX~~ divide-and-conquer the European and by extension, the world's countries by financing both sides of major conflicts and wars that they themselves would influence and profit from, growing rich off the interests from opposing fronts. Mayer Amschel Rothschild has control of the Illuminati through Adam Weishaupt. (1) Weishaupt publicized the beginning of the Bavarian Illuminati in this year, a premeditated shallow facade of the true Order of the Illuminated ones. He was a professor of canon law at Ingolstadt University in Germany as well as a Jesuit priest who believed in the return of Luciferian Society. His chapter was specifically started with the deceptive intent to have it publicly destroyed to distract the public into believing that the order itself was no more. (2) The Illuminati structure is based off of 13 royal families who all traced their lineages back several centuries, families that have taken an oath to the Antichrist sit on his throne. (3) George Washington, a leading Mason in the American colonies, publicly warned the new Americans about the existence of Illuminati agents of this subversive movement later when he is made President of the United States. ~~800~~ (4)

Though the American Revolutionary War began a year earlier, the Founding Fathers of the United States sign the Declaration of the Independence in 1776 officially creating the United States of America, the 13 colonies united together in war becoming 13 States of the most powerful nation this world has ever experienced. The British General Howe attacked New York City with more than 30,000 troops with German auxiliaries on July 2nd, capturing Long ~~XXXXXX~~ Island and driving away George Washington's tired and underfed army. (5) The British deserter John